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BOARD OF EDUCATION
P.O. Box 147
Berkeley Heights, Union County
New Jersey 07922

November 14, 2017

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Berkeley Heights School District for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the Berkeley Heights Board of Education. To
the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report 1s accurate in all
material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District.
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal
letter, the District’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial
section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s
report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to
undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
of 1996 and the related OMB Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter OMB
15-08. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the
internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of the report.



1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Berkeley Heights School District
is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established
by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds and account groups of the District are included in
this report. The Berkeley Heights Board of Education and all its schools constitute the
District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
Pre-K through 12. These services include regular as well as special education for
handicapped students. The District completed the 2016-2017 fiscal year with an
enrollment of 2,700 students, which is 41 students more than the previous year’s
enrollment. The average daily enrollment is a compilation of enrollment and attendance
data for the entire year. The statistic is different than the enrollment figure for the end of
the year which is the actual number of students enrolled. The following details the
changes in the student average daily enrollment of the District over the last ten years.

AVERAGE DAILY ENROLLMENT

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enrollment Change
2016-17 2.700 1.5%
2015-16 2,659 (.2%)
2014-15 2,666 (1.1%)
2013-14 2,696 (1.1%)
2012-13 2,725 (2.6%)
2011-12 2,797 (0.6%)
2010-11 2,815 (1.4%)
2009-10 2,854 0.7%
2008-09 2,832 0.2%

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Township of Berkeley Heights is a suburban town situated approximately 30 miles
west of New York City with easy access to major airports and highways. The Township
is 6.2 sq. miles and has a population of approximately 13,000 residents. Berkeley Heights
is a stable, affluent municipality.

Berkeley Heights is consistently nationally ranked as one of the best places to live. In NJ
Magazine 2017, Berkeley Heights was ranked 6th best place to live in New Jersey. In
Money magazine's 2013 Best Places to Live rankings, Berkeley Heights was ranked 6th
in the nation, the highest among the three places in New Jersey and was included in the
top 50 list. The magazine's 2007 list had the township ranked 45th out of a potential
2,800 places in the United States with populations above 7,500 and under 50,000.

Berkeley Heights has a total tax base of $1,818,955,520 and the residential portion of the
tax base is 77%. The residential base has remained constant over the past ten years while
the commercial base has been affected by changes in the economy. The total equalized
value has fluctuated over the past ten years but has stabilized and increased over the past
three years.



3)MAJOR INITIATIVES

The community values education and the school district continues to evaluate its
educational program and make improvements to the educational experience. The
curriculum has been revised to reflect new state standards and to keep pace with
community expectations regarding student achievement. Additional AP courses have
been added to the high school schedule. The STEAM curriculum has been expanded and
opportunities for students to participate in STEAM activities have increased. Each year
the district upgrades aspects of its technology infrastructure and improves and increases it
inventory of technology equipment.

The high school continues to be a high performing school with 96% of its graduates
going on to higher education. Advanced placement courses are offered in 23 subject
areas. The class 0f 2017 had 49 AP Scholars, 29 AP Scholars with Honors, 67 AP
Scholars with Distinction, and 11 National Scholars. The average SAT score 1s 600 for
reading and writing combined and 588 for math. The class of 2016 had 1 National Merit
Scholar, 1 semi-finalist and 20 commended students.

The district continues to make upgrades to the school facilities. The district took on
several major building projects during the summer of 2017. One area of focus was school
security. The district installed secure vestibules in each school lobby, a keyless access
control system and upgraded the school security camera system. Additionally, the district
took on a major field improvement project, installing a new turf field and track at its high
school facility. Funding for these projects was a combination of lease purchase
financing, withdrawal from capital reserve and the operating budget.

The district continues to upgrade its technology infrastructure, adding access points as
necessary and replacing outdated servers. The number of individual devices for students
and staff increased significantly. All students in grades 6 through 12 have iPads and
students in the elementary schools are using Chromebooks in their classrooms.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNT CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the district are protected from loss,
theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate account data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived: and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments
by management.




As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure
is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied
with applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and special revenue fund.
The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
section.

Budget Analysis Reports are reviewed regularly to identify any anticipated deficits to any
expense or revenue account. Transfers between accounts are approved at monthly
meetings to ensure that accounts are not over-expended.

An Encumbrance account system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on
a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriation of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2017.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND REPORTS:

The District’s account records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Account Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds
and account groups are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7) DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

Under provisions of New Jersey statutes, school districts may not incur indebtedness
greater than 4% of the average equalized valuation of taxable property. At June 30, 2017,
the District’s outstanding debt issues are well below the legal debt margin. The District
continues to be committed to providing the debt rating agencies and all other interested
parties with annual audited financial statements and other pertinent credit information
relevant tour outstanding securities.

9) CASH MANAGEMENT:

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation for each bank. In addition, the State of New Jersey Unit Deposit
Protection Act insures the remaining balance of funds on deposit in registered
depositories.




The Berkeley Heights Board of Education maintains an on line computerized accounting
system to record all financial transactions. During the fiscal year, financial reports are
prepared monthly and are distributed to the Board of Education Members. The reports
detail the monthly transaction and detail the appropriation balance.

10) RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general
liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on
property and contents, and fidelity bonds. Recently coverage for cyber liability and
pollution were added to our range of coverage.

11) OTHER INFORMATION:

a) Independent Audit - State statues require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Suplee,
Clooney & Co., was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set
forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single
Audit Act of 1996 and the related OMB Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular
Letter OMB 15-08. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are
included in the single audit section of this report.

12) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the
members of the Berkeley Heights School Board for their concern in providing fiscal
accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing
their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Oneditbe 4 Kativey / /

v - - A‘ L””“ L é ik i/{xa
Judith A. Rattner Donna A. Felezzd
Superintendent School Business Administrator/

Board Secretary
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SurPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07922

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Township of Berkeley Heights School District, County of Union, New Jersey as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey and the provisions of State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those standards and provisions
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.



SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the District’'s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of
Berkeley Heights School District, County of Union, New Jersey as of June 30, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1
through C-3 and the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1
through L-4 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Township of Berkeley Heights School District's basic financial
statements. The accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the combining
and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by New Jersey's
OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by New Jersey's OMB
Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid,” and by the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 14, 2017 on our consideration of the Township of Berkeley Heights School
District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTSZ
November 14, 2017 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s (the District)
financial performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’'s
financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and
notes to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement
No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and
Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current
fiscal year (2016-2017) and the prior fiscal year (2015-2016) is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2017 are as follows:

¢ The state continues to delay the final two state aid payments into the subsequent budget
year. Therefore, the final two payments were not refiected on the GAAP basis financial
statements for the 2016/2017 school year. The amount of the deferred state aid
payments, which were received in July 2017, is $111,631.

e General revenues accounted for $42,070,312 or 61% of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and operating/capital grants and
contributions accounted for $27,381,958 or 39% of all revenues.

e The District had $67,805,997 in expenses that were adequately provided for by general
revenues consisting primarily of state aid and property taxes.
Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole,

an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look
at specific financial activities.

13



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the
activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a
longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail.
For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as
well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the
District's most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column.
In the case of the district, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Reporting the District as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and
asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20177" The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in those assets. This
change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a
whole, the financial position of the District has improved or diminished. The causes of this
change may be the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors
include current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required
educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

¢ Government Activities — All of the District’'s programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of piant facilities,
student transportation and extracurricular activities.

e Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services

basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service
program is reported a business activity.

14



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial reports provide detailed information about the District's funds. The District uses
many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The District's governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service
Fund.

Governmental Funds

The District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future
years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. These
statements closely resemble financial statements of a private sector business entity.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole.

15



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

UNAUDITED

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the District’s net position for 2017 and 2016.

Assets

Current and Other Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows:
Related to Pensions

Liabilities

Other Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows:
Related to Pensions

Net Position

Table 1
Net Position

$

2017

10,011,535.28
62,601,115.96

2016

$8,714,245.11
60,839,348.32

72,612,651.24

69,553,593.43

6,093,307.00 3,096,472.00
6,093,307.00 3,096,472.00
3,966,897.31 4,658,114.43

39,659,188.53

34,246,531.93

43,626,085.84

171,748.00

38,904,646.36

304,675.00

46,252,611.85

43,937,067.97

Net Investment in Capital Assets

2,670,123.98
(14,014,611.43)
$34,908,124.40

2,511,511.32
(13,007,835.22)
$33,440,744.07

Restricted
Unrestricted(Deficit)

Total Net Position

The District's combined net position was $34,908,124 on June 30, 2017. The District's
investment in capital assets is shown net of any related debt used to acquire those assets.
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Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal years 2017 and 2016.

Both revenues and expenses increased mainly as a result of the district recognizing a larger on-
behalf TPAF contribution as a revenue and as an expense based upon the State’'s Actuarial

report

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants and Entitlements
Other

Total Revenues

Program Expenses

Instruction

Support Services:
Student and Instruction Related
General Administration
School Administration

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

N
(e]
—_
~

$7,378,898.49
19,236,511.78
766,547.92

40,836,212.00
701,753.00
532,347.87

N
=
(e}

$6,895,202.22
14,595,862.52
288,242.00

40,154,210.00
674,664.00
416,729.38

69,452,271.06

63,024,910.12

Central Services/ Adm. Of Technology

Maintenance of Facilities
Student Transportation
Business Type Activities
Other
Total Expenses

Increase/ (Decrease) in Net Position

42,695,269.99

9,545,192.89
1,457,381.37
3,228,451.57
1,309,192.30
4,830,601.36
1,665,498.71

975,095.74
2,099,313.48

38,484,218.08

8,586,876.38
1,377,435.39
2,794,094 .18
1,052,584.156
4,843,149.95
1,856,028.85

978,879.60
1,795,967.82

67,805,997.41

61,769,234.40

$1,646,273.65

$1,255,675.72
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Government Activities

The nature of funding public education primarily through property taxes in New Jersey creates
the legal requirements to annually seek voter approval for the School District budget. Property
taxes made up 60 percent of revenues for governmental activities in the District. There was a
$682,002 increase in property taxes or 1.70 percent from the prior year. The District’s total
revenues were $68,455,583 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Instruction comprises 64 percent of district expenses. Support services make up 33 percent of
the district expenses and other services and expenses make up 3 percent.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and
operating grants and contributions in the food service program. The Board of Education
continues to work to increase sales in the program and reduce operating costs. The Board has
opted out of the State sponsored Child Nutrition Program which limits the price of lunches and
restricts types and sizes of offerings. The cafeterias located in each school building offer
flexibility in food selection, menu offerings and pricing that meets the needs of the students. The
following are some of our major business type activity results.

s Business type expenses exceeded revenues by $21,592.
¢ Revenues consist of $986,688 in operating revenue from charges for services.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services
and grants offsetting those services.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the
cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State entitiements.

Instruction

Support Services:
Students and Instruction Related
General Administration, School
& Central Administration
Maintenance of Facilities
Student Transportation
Other
Business-Type Activities

Total Net Cost of Services

Table 3
Net Cost of Services

Total Cost of
Services 2017
$42 695,269.99

Total Cost of
Services 2016

Net Cost of
Services 2017

38,469,994 .84

$21,246,799.47

Net Cost of
Services 2016
21,341,425.06

9,545,192.89 8,566,249.09 6,549,011.58 6,422,531.00
5,095,025.24 5,471,800.80 4,529,422 .66 4,424,648.32
4,830,601.36 4,861,724.286 4,574,166.30 4,595,990.07
1,665,498.71 1,737,275.78 1,484,911.78 1,634,365.27
1,982,230.48 1,688,612.44 670,812.29 639,811.79

975,095.74 978,879.60 (21,592.26) (11,472.23)

$67,688,914.41

$61,774,536.81

$39,033,531.82

$38,947,299.28

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.
other schools for regular and special education students is also included here.

Tuition paid to

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated
with administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective operating condition.

Student transportation includes activities with the conveyance of special education students to
and from school, school activities and athletic events, as provided by state law.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation and interest on long term debt.

Business-Type activities include activities in the food service program.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

The School District’s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund, and debt
service fund presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Total revenues amounted to $57,712,878.06 and expenditures
were $58,884,766.63.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of
this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management,
which required significant budget adjustments to contend with state aid reductions. The
following scheduies, which do not include the Capital Project Fund’s activity, present a summary
of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the
amount and percentage of increase or decrease in relation to prior year revenues.

Percent
increase(Decrease) increase
Revenues Amount Percent of Total from FY 2016 (Decrease)
Local Sources $47,750,770.36 82.74% $1,273,290.72 4.49%
State Sources 9,227,284.98 15.99% 980,817 .42 3.87%
Federal Sources 734,822.72 1.27% 43,669.99 2.95%
Total $57,712,878.06 100.00% $2,297,778.13 4.16%

The following schedule represents a summary of generai fund, special revenue fund, and debt
service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the percentage of
increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Percent
Increase(Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Percent of Total from FY 2016 (Decrease)
Current:

instruction $23,177,802.27 39.36% $532,866.93 2.25%
Support Services 29,810,968.69 50.63% 1,270,076.13 4.09%
Capital Outlay 3,646,595.67 6.19% 2,056,069.16 36.05%
Debt Service 2,249,400.00 3.82% (45,212.50) -2.05%
Total $58,884,766.63 100.00% $3,813,799.72 7.09%
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’'s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education, when appropriate, approved budget
transfers to keep accounts in balance. Transfers to the budget were made to accurately reflect
expenditures according to state guidelines and prevent over-expenditures in specific line item
accounts. These revisions bear notation:

¢ TPAF, which is the State’s contribution to the pension fund, post-retirement benefits and the
employer’'s share of FICA costs, is neither a revenue or expenditure item in the budget;
however, the School District is required to present this information in the revenue and
expenditure sections of the report.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2017, the District had $39,659,188 of outstanding long-term liabilities. Of this
amount, $1,858,118 is for compensated absences; $4,160,711 for capital leases, $19,115,359
of net pension liability and $14,525,000 of serial bonds for school construction.

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2017, the District had a net of $62,601,115.96 invested in land,
building and building improvements, and machinery and equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal year
2017 balances compared to 2016.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net: of Depreciation
Land
Construction in Progress
Land Improvements
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net:of Depreciation
Machinery and Equipment
Total Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net:

Total Capital Assets, Net
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2017
$14,043,000.00
$531,121.30
486,874.48
45,541,773.25
1,929,395.27

2016

$14,043,000.00

502,031.70
44,904,716.34
1,351,854.28

62,532,164.30

60,801,602.32

68,951.66

37,746.00

68,951.66

37,746.00

$62,601,115.96

$60,839,348.32




TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Overall net capital assets increased by $1,761,767.64 from fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2017.
For the Future

The Berkeley Heights School District has been and continues to utilize sound accounting
practices during a period of uncertainty in State funding. The state imposed cap on property tax
increases of 2% has effected how the district budgets and plans for current and future
expenses.

The district is in the second year of a five year strategic plan focusing on student achievement,
guidance services, technology, academic curriculum and talent. This plan has provided a frame
work for moving the district forward.

Some of the changes that have been made in accordance with the plan are: the district annually
coordinates a college fair and guidance programs have been expanded in the elementary
schools. Staff members are provided additional in-depth professional development and the
recruitment process has been revised. The STEAM curriculum has expanded and there are
more science and math co-curricular opportunities available for students. At the high school, the
number of advanced placement classes has been increased and the number of students taking
AP tests has increased. The school district has made significant improvements to its technology
infrastructure and expanded its 1-1 technology plan. Students in grades 3-5 now have access
to Chromebooks.

The school district will continue to evaluate its progress and follow the framework of the
strategic plan to make changes that will improve student achievement.

The school district continues to evaluate its facilities and make improvements and upgrades to
the facilities annually. Following guidance from the state, this year secure vestibules were
installed in every school. Each school has a secure vestibule where visitors are vetted before
entering the school. The security camera system at each school has been updated and access
has improved. An access control system has been installed at each school allowing greater
security as exterior doors can remain locked.

Another major facilities project the district undertook was the installation of a new turf field and
the replacement of the track at the high school. The track was 20 years old and plans to
replace the tract were discussed for several years.

The township is planning for additional housing units to be built in town and the district has
evaluated current enroliments and building capacity in relation to these proposed developments.
Based on our evaluation, there is the building capacity to support the new developments. As
the proposed units become a reality, we will continue to evaluate building capacity.

The district will continue to evaluate its facilities in reference to the condition of the buildings,

changing curriculum and needs of the students. Based on these evaluations appropriate plans
will be made to improve the facilities to meet these changing needs.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED

Fortunately, the Berkeley Heights School District has entered this period of time with a strong
and prudent budget. We continually monitor costs and look for ways to do things more efficiently
and look for opportunities to share services. As a way of addressing the budget constraints and
a 2% tax levy increase, the district has entered into short term lease agreements for the
purchase of technology, instructional, maintenance and transportation equipment.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management Office

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the School District’'s finances and to show the School District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional information contact: Donna Felezzola, Business Administrator/Board Secretary,
Berkeley Heights Board of Education, 345 Plainfield Avenue, Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922.
Also, please visit our website to learn more about our School District.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2017
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position display information about the District. These statements inciude the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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EXHIBIT "A-1"

TOWNSHIP QF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $6,195,589.46 $2,963.23 $6,198,552.69
Receivables, net 3,758,905.45 3,758,905.45
Inventory 7,599.94 7,599.94
Capital assets:

Non Depreciable 14,574,121.30 14,574,121.30

Depreciable - Net 47,958,043.00 68,951.66 48,026,994.66

Total Assets 72,486,659.21 125,992.03 72,612,651.24
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pension 6,093,307.00 6,093,307.00
Total deferred outflow of resources 6,093,307.00 6,093,307.00
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 617,099.65 5,699.00 622,798.65
Payable to state government 136.59 136.59
Other payables 1,551,338.00 1,551,338.00
Payable to other funds 46,477.20 46,477.20
Unearned revenue 1,505,410.08 24,231.79 1,5629,641.87
Accrued interest payable 216,505.00 216,505.00
Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension liability 19,115,359.00 19,115,359.00

Due within one year 2,728,074.73 2,728,074.73

Due beyond one year 17,815,754.80 17,815,754.80

Total liabilities 43,596,155.05 29,930.79 43,626,085.84
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pension 171,748.00 171,748.00
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in capital assets 46,183,660.19 68,951.66 46,252,611.85
Restricted for:

Debt service(deficit) (216,504.62) (216,504.62)

Other purposes 2,886,628.60 2,886,628.60
Unrestricted(deficit) (14,041,721.01) 27,109.58 (14,014,611.43)
Total net position $34,812,063.16 $06,061.24 $34,908,124 .40

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable:
Federal

State

Locai

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Cash Deficit
Accounts payabte
Accrued liability for insurance claim
Interfund payabie
Intergovernmental payables:
State
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Capital reserve account
Excess surplus
Excess surplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Debt service

Assigned
Year-end encumbrances

Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$ 4,934,152.16  $ $ $ 038 $ 4,934,152.54
2,337,207.86 2,337,207.86
49,031.79 49,031.79
513,686.72 2,544,150.00 3,057,836.72
652,036.94 652 036.94
$ 8,437,083.68 § 49,031.79 % 2,544,15000 § 038 § 11,030,265.85
$ $ 2217966 § 1,053,59128 § $ 1,075,770.94
16,139.11 24,715.54 40,854.65
s 1,651,338.00 1,651,338.00
46,477.20 46,477.20
136.59 136.59
2.351,257.86 2,000.00 1,489,360.08 3,842.617.94
3,965,212.17 49,031.79 2,542,951.36 6,5657,195.32
1,515,334 .41 1,615,334.41
736,156.19 736,156.19
635,138.00 635,138.00
0.38 0.38
319,513.85 1,198.64 320,712.49
1,265,729.06 1,265,729.06
4,471,871.51 1,198.64 0.38 4,473,070.53
$ 8,437,08368 § 4903179 $ 2,544,150.00 § 038 § 11,030,265.85

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

29



EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017
Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward) 3 4,473,070.53

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets 3 90,306,797.52
Accumulated Depreciation (27,774,633.22)

62,532,164.30

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payabie in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Serial bonds payable (14,525,000.00)
Net Pensijon Liability (19,115,359.00)
Capital leases payable (4,160,711.97)
Less: unexpended capital lease proceeds 2,337,207.86
Compensated absences payable (1,858,117.56)

(37,321,980.67)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related 6,093,307.00

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related (171,748.00)

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accounts payable - pension related (576,245.00)
Accrued Interest Payabie (216,505.00)
(792,750.00)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 34,812,063.16

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Interest earned on capital reserve funds
Tuition
Miscellaneous

Total - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current expense:
Reguiar instruction
Special instruction

Other Instruction

Support services:

Tuition

Student & instruction related services
General administrative services
Schoot administrative services
Central services

Administrative information technology
Piant operations and maintenance
Student transportation
Unaliocated benefits
Special schools

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in/out
Capital leases (non-budgeted)

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2016

Fund balances, June 30, 2017

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOQL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$ 39,227,836.00 $ $ 1,608,376.00 § 40,836,212.00
5,857.38 5,857.38
6,382,210.49 6,382.210.49
526,490.49 526,490.49
46,142,394 .36 1,608,376.00 47,750,770.36
7,864,041.65 1,652.41 766,547.92 595,043.00 9,227,284.98
734,822.72 734,822.72
54,006,436.01 736,475.13 766,547 92 2,203,419.00 57,712,878.06
16,161,601.83 206,471.56 16,368,073 39
4,631,690.60 529,359.19 5,161,049.79
1,648,679.09 1,648,679.09
1,505,846.80 1,505,846 .80
5,332,921.04 644.38 5,333,565 42
1,025,026.84 1,025,026.84
1,864,630.15 1,864,630.15
452,003.53 452,003 53
464,880.94 464,880.94
3,347,765.95 3,347,765.95
1,591,256.31 1,591,256.31
14,163,762.25 14,163,762.25
62,230.50 62,230.50
1,585,000.00 1,585,000.00
664,400.00 664,400.00
1,645,775.85 2,000,819.82 3,646,595 67
53,898,071.68 736,475.13 2,000,819.82 2,249,400.00 58,884,766.63
108,364.33 (1,234,271.80) (45,981.00) (1,171,888.57)
(1,307,532.00) 1,307,532.00
1,597,096.23 1,597,096 23
289,564.23 1,307,532.00 1,597,096 23
397,928 56 73,260.10 (45,981.00) 425,207 .66
4,073,942.95 (72,061.46) 45,981.38 4,047,862.87
$ 4.471,871.51 $-0- $ 119864 8 038 § 4,473,07053

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSRHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Total net change in fund balances - governmentatl funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays
Less; Capital outlays not capitalized

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in governmental funds. They are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position.

Capital lease proceeds

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of capital lease principal
Payment of bond principal

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
In governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an increase in the
reconciliation.

Decrease in accrued interest payable

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liabitity adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions
Less: Pension expense

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Decrease in compensated absences payable

Change in net position of governmental activities

$

(1,670,172.89)
3,646,595.67

(30,603.09)

565,872.47

573,378.00

(1,910,739.00)

$

$

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-3"

425,207.66

1,945,819.69

(1,597,096.23)

2,150,872.47

14,207.78

(1,337,361.00)

23,031.02

1,624,681.39



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Interfunds
inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS
NON-MAJOR

2,963.23

46,477.20
7,599.94

57,040.37

272,921.22
(203,969.56)

68,951.66

125,992.03

5,699.00
24,231.79

29,930.79

29,930.79

68,951.66
27,109.58

96,061.24

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales
Salaries and employee benefits
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Miscelianeous
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating tncome

Net income before contributions and transfers

Change in net position

Total net position - ending

3

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-5"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS
NON-MAJOR

986,758.21
9,929.79

996,688.00

449,316.59
361,496.21
57,505.27
29,311.05
69,934.62
7,532.00

975,095.74

21,592.26

21,592.26

21,592.26

96,061.24




TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers

Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers from/(to) other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities:

Purchase of capita-I assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1,

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30,

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and net amortization

Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable
(Increase)/(decrease in accounts receivable
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

EXHIBIT "B-6"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS
NON-MAJOR

1,031,495.31
(361,496.21)

(605,568.08)

64,431.02

(61,596.65)

(61,596.65)

(2,373.27)

(2,373.27)

461.10

2,502.13

2,963.23

21,592.26

7,532.00
(2,332.18)
29,454.73
5,352.58
2,831.63
42,838.76

64,431.02



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSTION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

PRIVATE
PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
SCHOLARSHIP COMPENSATION AGENCY
FUNDS TRUST FUNDS
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,530.23 § 34151774  § 889,724._23
Total assets 11,5630.23 341,517.74 889,724.23
LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions and withholdings 649,580.65

Due to Student Groups 240,143.58
Total liabilities $ 889,724.23
NET POSITION:

Held in trust for unemployment claims $ 341,517.74

Held in trust for scholarships $ 11,5630.23

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Unemployment
Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest earned

Net investment earnings
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Other purposes
Unemployment claims
Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

EXHIBIT "B-8"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

PRIVATE
PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
SCHOLARSHIP COMPENSATION
FUNDS TRUST

$ 47,482.50
5,352.83 47,482.50
36.21 1,567.70
36.21 1,567.70
5,389.04 49,050.20

2,459.40
8,087.87
2,459.40 8,087.87
2,929.64 40,962.33
8,600.59 300,555.41
11,530.23  $ 341,517.74

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Berkeley Heights School District (the “District”)
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the District’'s accounting policies are described
below:

Reporting Entity

The School District is a Type |l District located in Union County, New Jersey.
The School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established
to function as an educational institution. The Berkeley Heights School District is
governed by a seven member board and one sending district member. A
superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of
the following criteria should be discretely presented as component units:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that
the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has
the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.
The financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board
exercises operating control.

The operations of the District include kindergarten through high school education.
There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity
under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the
District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District’s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-Wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish generally between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activities of the District at fiscal year end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District’'s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including
its fiduciary funds. Separate statements are presented for each fund category-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE as the oversight entity believes that the
presentation of all funds as major is important for the public interest and to
promote consistency among District financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds

General Fund The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District and is used to account for all expendable financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are
certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non
instructional equipment which are classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey Statement Department of Education, the
District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles as they pertain to governmental entities
state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital
outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such
cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for
budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, district taxes, and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures
are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for
land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of
built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to the
current expense by Board resolution; in certain instances approval by the
County Superintendent of Schools may also be required.

Special Revenue Fund The special revenue fund is used to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue sources from State and Federal
Government (other than those for major capital projects, debt service or
proprietary funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds The capital projects fund is used to account for
all financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).
The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on
the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal and interest
on debt issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and
improvement programs.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to the District's Food Service program operations.
These funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated
intent is that the cost (ie. expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing
basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by
the District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or
on behalf of other funds within the District. The agency funds included
are as follows:

Payroll and Student Activities Funds These are agency funds used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their
agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve
measurement of results of operations.

Unemployment Insurance Trust Funds An expendable trust fund used
to account for unemployment compensation claims as they arise.

Scholarship Fund - This expendable trust is used to account for
donations received that are for student scholarships.

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the
financial records and reported in the financial statements.

41



NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus (Continued)

District-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements
The District-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of unearned
revenue, and in the presentation for expenses versus expenditures. Ad
Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under New
Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school district
the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue
is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment
schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts
receivable”. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements Governmental funds are
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. “Measurable” means the
amount of the transactions can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the
District follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, Account Research Bulletins, unless those
pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, which became effective
January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the School Board election to the
date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual
base budget unless required by the mandated State budget CAP. The legal level
of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line
item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
B6A:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the line item level. All budget amendments and transfers must be approved by
School Board resolution. Budget amendments during the year ended June 30,
2017 totaled $256,539.00, representing the use extraordinary aid.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration into the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. For
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with
the exception of the legally mandated (NJSA 18A:22-44.2) revenue recognition of
deferred State Aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the accounting
treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognized encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditures of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at
fiscal year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue and capital project funds for which
the District has received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as
unearned revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available expendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
School Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy and/or collective bargaining unit
contracts. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. Sick
leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin vesting with the employee
after four years of service.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave and vacation days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon
termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability
based on the accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by
those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the district-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District’'s equity in the
cumulative earnings of the proprietary fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and capital projects funds represents
funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. Net Position represents the difference
between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The District’s policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Non-Spendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund
Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves (Continued)

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance. The District reports amounts Designated for Subsequent Year's
Expenditures as Committed Fund Balance.

Unassigned - is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues, Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, “available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants,
entittements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on
a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-
exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
and program fees in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise
fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assumptions that affect the amounts reported as revenue
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. These estimates may
differ from actual resulits.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’'s proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (“PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements the year end net pension liability is
not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1%t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District's behalf
by the State of New Jersey. The governmental fund financial statements reflects
both a revenue and expense for this pension contribution.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outfiows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has only one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to
pensions.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. Each
depository participating in the GUDPA system must pledge collateral equal to 5%
of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of
its public funds in excess of 756% of its capital funds. No collateral is required for
amounts covered by FDIC insurance. The collateral which may be pledged to
support these deposits includes obligations of the State and federal
governments, insured securities and other collateral approved by the
Department. When the capital position of the depository deteriorates or the
depository takes an unusually large amount of public deposits, the Department of
Banking and Insurance requires additional collateral to be pledged. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that
adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2017, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, $-0- of cash equivalents was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the $8,661,799.30 cash and cash equivalents
on deposit, $539,147.25 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance,
$8,122,799.30 was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA.

As of June 30, 2017, cash and cash equivalents of the District consisted of the
following:

Bank Reconciling items: Reconciled
Fund Type: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental $7,307,972.21 $9.72 $1,112,392.47 $6,195,589.46
Proprietary 2,996.63 0.00 33.40 2,963.23
Fiduciary 1,350,830.46 22.09 108,080.35 1,242,772.20
$8,661,799.30 $31.81 $1,220,506.22 37,441 324 .89

Investments

The types of investments which may be purchased by the District are strictly
limited by the express authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education,
Administration of School Districts. Permitted investments include any of the
following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor,

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:2037. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 C. 52:18A-90.4); or
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments {(Continued)

8.

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a.

the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository
as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 C. 17:1941); and

a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2017, the District had no outstanding investments that were
not considered “cash equivalents”.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
and its existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency
risks for its deposits and investments.
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance (as
restated) Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $14,043,000.00 $14,043,000.00
Construction in progress $531,121.30 531,121.30
Total Capital Assets not
being depreciated 14,043,000.00 531,121.30 14,574,121.30
Land Improvements 3,153,105.65 7,185.00 3,160,290.65
Buildings & Building Improvements 65,561,193.67 1,858,075.00 67,419,268.67
Machinery & Equipment 4,101,019.38 1,219,611.28 (167,513.76) 5,153,116.90
Totals at historical cost 72,815,318.70 3,084,871.28 (167,513.76) 75,732,676.22
Gross Assets (Memo only) 86,858,318.70 3,615,992.58 (167,513.76) 90,306,797.52

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Land Improvements

Buildings & Building Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total Depreciation

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net of depreciation

Total Governmental Fund Activities

(2,607,270.75
(20,651,477.66

(66,145.42
(1,226,017.76

167,513.76

(2.673,416.17)
(21,877,495.42)
(3,223,721.63)

)
)
(3,013,225.68)
(26,271,974.09)

)
)
(378,009.71)
(1,670,172.89)

167,5613.76

(27,774,633.22)

46,543,344.61

1,414,698.39

47,958,043.00

$60,586,344.61

$1,945,819.69

$62,532,164.30

Proprietary Activities:

Machinery & Equipment $270,547.95 $2,373.27 $272,921.22
Totals at historical cost 270,547.95 2,373.27 272,921.22
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Machinery & Equipment (196,437.56) (7,532.00) (203,969.56)
Total Depreciation (196,437.56) (7,532.00) (203,969.56)

Total Proprietary Fund Activities $74,110.39 ($5,158.73) $68,951.66
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functional expenses areas of the

District as follows:

Instruction:
Regular $197,450.87
Support services:
Student & instruction related services 18,167.80
Central Services/Technology 36,607.55
Plant operations and maintainance 54 979.34
Pupil transportation 51,549.14
Direct Expense of various functions 1,311,418.19

$1,670,172.89

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they
were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Debt Capacity

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to
exceed 4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.
18A:24-19 is as follows:

Equalized
Valuation of
Year Real Property
2016 $3,341,972,551
2015 3,216,617,924
2014 3,127,988 857
$9,686,579,332
Average equalized valuation $3,228,859,777

School borrowing margin

(4% of $3,228,859,777) $129,154,391
Net school debt as of June 30, 2017 14,525,000
School borrowing power available $114,629,391
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of transactions that affect long-term liabilities for the
year ended June 30, 2017:

Balance, Balance, Due Within
June 30, 2016 Additions Reductions June 30, 2017 One Year
Bonds Payable $16,110,000.00 (3$1,585,000.00) $14,525,000.00 $1,615,000.00
Compensated Absence 1,881,148.58 (23,031.02) 1,858,117.56

Net Pension Liability 14,651,103.00 $4,464,256.00 19,115,359.00

Capital Leases Payable 1.604.280.35 3.122,304.09 (565,872.47) 4,160,711.97 1,113,074.73
Total $34.246,531.93 $7.586.560.09  ($2,173.903.49) $39600188.53  $2.728.074.73

Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2017,
including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $1,615,000.00 $623,075.00 $2,238,075.00
2019 1,635,000.00 579,225.00 2,210,225.00
2020 1,705,000.00 509,975.00 2,214,975.00
2021 1,760,000.00 426,650.00 2,186,650.00
2022 1,840,000.00 342,600.00 2,182,600.00
2023-2026 5,970,000.00 747,250.00 6,717,250.00

$14,525,000.00

$3,228,775.00

$17,749,775.00
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with their outstanding
balances are comprised of the following individual issues:
Amount
Outstanding
Issue June 30, 2017
$4,005,000.00 in 2009 Refunding Bonds due in remaining annual
installments of between $380,000.00 and $385,000.00 ending
August, 2021 with interest between 4.000% to 5.000% $1,920,000.00
$13,970,000.00 in 2014 Refunding Bonds due in remaining annual
instaliments of between $1,210,000.00 and $1,500,000.00 ending
November, 2026 with interest between 2.000% to 5.000% 12.605,000.00
14,525,000.00

Capital Leases Payable

The District is leasing technology infrastructure, buses and technology equipment
under capital leases. The capital leases are for terms up to five years. The
following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30,
2017:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30 Amount
2018 $1,159,029.94
2019 1,039,318.00
2020 808,079.41
2021 716,992.35
2022 611,179.25
Total Minimum Lease Payments 4,334 598.95
Less: Amount Representing
Interest (173,886.98)
Present Value of Lease Payments $4,160,711.97

59



NOTE 5:

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension_and Annuity Fund (TPAF) The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer’'s annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
areset by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement heaithcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and N.J.S. A 1866, and
requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan
member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey
legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for an increase in the
employee contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in
over 7 years beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law’s
effective date for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on-behalf of public school districts).

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 APC Contributed Obligation
2017 $573,378.00 100% $573,378.00
2016 561,120.00 100% 561,120.00
2015 506,903.00 100% 506,903.00

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the State of New
Jersey contributed $2,395,397.00, $1,706,946.00 and $1,099,012.00 respectively
to the TPAF pension system on-behalf of the District.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 during the years ended June 30,
2017, 2016 and 2015, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$1,684902.65, $1,676,156.51 and $1,626,903.00 respectively for the employer’s
share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their
base salaries.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $19,115,359.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2015 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2016. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the District's
proportion was 0.0645415599 percent, which was an decrease of 0.0007253056
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of
$1,910,706.00 in the government-wide financial statements. This pension
expense was based on the pension plans June 30, 2016 measurement date.

At June 30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflow of Outflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $355,488.00
Changes of assumptions 3,959,681.00
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 728,886.00
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions $171,748.00 473,007.00
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 576,245.00
$171,748.00 $6,093,307.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The $576,245.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2017, the plan measurement date is
June 30, 2016) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2018 $1,224,454.00
2019 $1,224,454.00
2020 $1,395,972.00
2021 $1,165,495.00
2022 $334,939.00

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2016. This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions, applied
to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation 3.08 Percent

Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age)

Investment Rate of Return  7.65 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30,
2014. It is likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these
assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial
statements.
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee
Preretirement Mortality Table for male and female active participants. For State
employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and females. For local
employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for
females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from
the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's
modified MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back
1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former
members and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale
AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former
members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014
projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were
based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and
set forward 1 year for females).

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.65% at June 30, 2016 and 7.90% at June 30, 2015) is determined
by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the
following table

June 30, 2016

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 5.00% 0.87%
U.S. Treasuries 1.50% 1.74%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.79%
Mortgages 2.00% 1.67%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.56%
Inflation Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.44%
Broad U.S. Equities 26.00% 8.53%
Developed Foreign Markets 13.25% 6.83%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 9.95%
Private Equity 9.00% 12.40%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Returns 12.50% 4.68%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.91%
Commodities 0.50% 5.45%
Global Debt ex US 5.00% -0.25%
REIT 5.25% 5.63%

100.00%
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.98% and
4.90% as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.65% and 7.90%, and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% and
3.80% as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed
30% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employer
contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2034.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2034, and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability

Sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate.

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating
employers as of June 30, 2016 respectively, calculated using the discount rate as
disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it
was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or
1- percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
2.98% 3.98% 4.98%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability 23,423,641.00 19,115,359.00 15,558,498.00
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New
Jersey 08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the
District recognized at June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $17,069,599
$17,069,599
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2015. The net pension liability associated with the District
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts
and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the proportion of the TPAF
net pension liability associated with the District was .2238181394% which was a
increase of .0059118789 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $13,229,180.00 in the government-wide financial
statements for contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and
revenue was based on the pension plans June 30, 2016 measurement date,

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2016. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%
Salary increases:
2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience
Investment rate of return 7.65%

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the
experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational
basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the

results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30,
2015.
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the
experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational
basis on a 60-year average of Social Security from 1953 to 2013.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.65% at June 30, 2016) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in
TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Aliocation Rate of Return
US Cash 5.00% 0.39%
US Governement Bonds 1.50% 1.28%
US Credit Bonds 13.00% 2.76%
US Mortgages 2.00% 2.38%
US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 1.41%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.70%
US Equities Markets 26.00% 5.14%
Foreign-Delveloped Equity 13.25% 5.91%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 8.16%
Private Real Estate Property 5.25% 3.64%
Timber 1.00% 3.86%
Farmlands 1.00% 4.39%
Private Equity 9.00% 8.97%
Commodities 0.50% 2.87%
Hedge Funds - Multi Stratagy 5.00% 3.70%
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge 3.75% 4.72%
Hedge Funds - Distressed 3.75% 3.49%

100.00%
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.22% and
4.13% as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.65% and 7.90, and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% and
3.80% as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the
most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 30% of the actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2029. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2029, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

For eligible retired employees, the School District participates in the State Health
Benefits Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits. SHBP was established in 1961 under
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.25 et seq., to provide health benefits to State employees,
retirees, and their dependents. Rules governing the operation and administration
of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative
Code. SHBP provides medical, prescription drugs, mental health/substance
abuse, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents.

The State Health Benefits Commission is the executive body established by
statute to be responsible for the operation of the SHBP. The State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295.

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, ¢.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity
Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS),
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those state employees
who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability
retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate
funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-
retirement medical benefits for retired state employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2016 there were 110,512 retirees eligible for post-
retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $1.37 billion on their behalf.
The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the state in
accordance with P.L. 1994, c¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums
changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal
Year 1994.

The state is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢. 126, which
provides free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit
Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of
service. The state paid $231.2 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,045
eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2016.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The State will set the contribution rate based on the annual required contribution
of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s contributions to the State Health
Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of
the School for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were,
$2,068,227.00, $2,133,747.00, $1,870,204.00 and $1,467,357.00 respectively,
which equaled the required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions
to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS retirees’ post-retirement
benefits on behalf of the School was not determined or made available by the
State of New Jersey.

LITIGATION

The District’'s counsel advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation, claims,
contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory violations
which involve the School District and which might materially affect the District's
financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2016-
2017 fiscal year were subject to the U.S. OMB Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and
expenditures be audited in conjunction with the District's annual audit if
expenditures for federal or state programs exceed $750,000. Findings and
questioned costs, if any, relative to federal and state financial assistance
programs are discussed in the Single Audit Section, Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and cost reimbursements are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors. The District's management
does not believe any such audit would result in material amounts of disallowed
costs.
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NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled
claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance The District has elected
to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
“‘Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits
paid and the ending balance of the District’'s fiduciary trust fund for the current
and previous two years:

Interest and

Year Ended Employer Employee Amount Ending

June 30 Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2017 $-0- $49,050.20 $8,087.87 $341,517.74
2016 -0- 45,899.90 30,387.49 300,555.41
2015 33,545.00 44,032.00 33,542.00 285,043.00

Health and Prescription Drug Insurance The District has entered into an
agreement with Cigna Insurance Company for a Minimum Premium funded
medical and prescription drug program. The agreement is administered by
Centric Benefits Consulting. At June 30, 2017 total unpaid claims, including an
estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) to the
administrative agent, totaled $1,551,338.00.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The estimates are developed based on reports prepared by the administrative
agent. For the year ended June 30, 2017 changes in the liability reported in the
General (Educational) Fund for unpaid claims are summarized below:

Year Ended
June 30, 2017

Accrued Liability for Claims-Beginning Balance $1,494,102.00
Premiums 5,734,737.76
Incurred 'Claims (including IBNR) and Administrative Expenses (5,677,501.76)
Accrued Liability for Claims-Ending Balance $1,551,338.00

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2017,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position of $1,858,117.56.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2017 no liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary funds.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund Of the $4,471,871.51 in General Fund Balance at June 30, 2017,
$319,513.85 has been assigned for encumbrances; $1,371,294.19 is restricted
for excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F7 of which $635,138.00 of
the total restricted for excess surplus has been appropriated in the budget for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018; $1,515,334.41 has been restricted for Capital
Reserve and $1,265,729.06 is unassigned.

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS (BUDGETARY BASIS)

In accordance with N.J.S.A.18A.7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004,¢.73 (§1701),
the Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant
to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act
of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General
Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’
budget. Based on this calcuiation, the District has $736,156.19 excess fund
balance resulting from the year ended June 30, 2017.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2017:

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $46,477.20
Enterprise Funds $46,477.20
$46,477.20 $46,477.20

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were dishursed and payments between funds were received.

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the District for the accumulation of
funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The
capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget.
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CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the Department of Education, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June 1
to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriations,
or both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special election dates authorized
by N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 8A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the
account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve during the year ended June 30, 2017, is as
follows:

Balance, July 1, 2016 $1,309,477.03
Interest Earnings $5,857.38
Deposits:
Board Resolution 300,000.00
305,857.38
$1,615,334.41
Withdrawals:
2016-17 Budget (100,000.00)
Balance, June 30, 2017 $1,515,334.41
INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $7,599.94
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NOTE 17: DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans
permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2017.

NOTE 18: OPERATING LEASES

The District has commitments to lease postage equipment under operating
leases which expire in June 2021. The operating lease payments made during
the year ended June 30, 2017 were $2,148.00. Future minimum lease payments
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30 Amount
2018 $2,148.00
2018 2,148.00
2020 2,148.00
2021 1,611.00

Total Future Minimum
Lease Payments $8,055.00

NOTE 19: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The adjustments below were reflected against the beginning Net position balance
on the District Wide Statements as follows:

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities
Beginning Net Position 06/30/16 $ 33,402,639.48 $ 38,104.59
Adjustments:
Capital Assets (215,257.71) 36,364.39
Beginning Net Position 06/30/16 (as restated)  $ 33,187,381.77 § 74,468.98

Net position was restated to properly reflect capital asset balances after the
district conducted a new appraisal of it's capital assets.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through November 14, 2017 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. The District has determined that there
are no material subsequent events needed to be disclosed.

79



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Ii

80




OTHER FUNDS

81




BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

82




v8'97E 2kl £87109'L51 9L /9’826 €0E 9} T2z i90'81) 68566 22E 9
00ZLE 0Ly L 00ELY'L COLbL'L C02iy
Srego'e S5 pZs'8r 00'809'LS (oo'BLL'2s) 00'Z/84'€0L
OLELP'08 oL Zer 25 LLS'ELS (68168 1) L 69F'095
80266 ve'1e8'2 26'E58'S 26ESLL 000012

67 9¥5's ¥6'08.'Z8 £V LZr'T6 (S0'1L06'E) 85'87£'96
6EPFZ'ST 6ZrE8L2 89'819'¢HZ 89'8L1'99 0000822}
BYELEE LS'p8L'LOZ 00'867'¥02 00'859'2€ 0008994
20GPE'TL ¥1°068'89 91'geZ'Lg 9L'8E2'9L 00 £66'79
81 §5'226'c9 Zr pZ6'e9 185'€5£'¢) 00'842'L5

€E96L'T) £E'96'2L £EOrL'S 000592
96'LE YO'890'64 00'00L 6 {00 006'S} 00°000'SZ
98241 £b'155'590'9 1€ '622'580'9 69 vr2's8) 00 viv'ISE'S
LLLS 0E'P6E'POZ'E LY'SPYROT'E (e5'99%'02) 00TIB'PLT'E
oL'beEL'D 96'89L'POE'S ZLEOL'LLE'S Z1'186'c8 008t 'L2T'S
8465 £5'8EE'SEY LE'BBESEY LE'92¢ 88 00'240'26€
10'220'956°9 L0ZETBO0'¥S 00'SSHES0 LY 00'5GL'€S0'LY
59985692’ 59'/€8'998°2 00'1SZ /641 00 LSZ /6L L
G9'C06 ¥89'L S9Z06'F89’L
00'282't 00282
00222'890°C 00'2ZZ'890°C
00'462'98 00'LE.'98
00'265'S6E'T 00'26E'S6E°C
00'0ZE'LE 000Ze'LE
00 299'86E 00 Z99'86E

00'52£'89 00'GLE'89 00'5.€'89

00 vIr'vEL 00 PP PEL 00 Fab vEL

00'Z88'0F 00'Z88°0F 00'288'0%

00 0£5'€56 00'0E5°E56 00 0£5'€58
9E 067 98¢ SEPEETHL OF 00 +06'558'G¥ 00 ¥06 558'St
6E'198'6C 6€GB.'9Er 00 ¥Z6'90r 00 bZ6'90Y
0L'S0L'pL 01'50L'68 00 000'G4 0000062
6p'9L6°0FT 62°0LZZ88°9 00762 LyL'D CO'veZ'LbL'9
8€ 00°L 8€/58'S 00058y 00'058'%

00'9E8'L2Z 68 00'9E8°222'6E $ 00'9E8°LZT'6E

[EREEE B RTEN)) VALY 135ana vNiE SINIWANSAV 1350n9
/A19v¥H0AVA ANV SHIASNYAL TYNIDHO
JONVRIVA 139an8
£10Z "0€ INNT Q3NT AvIA TvOSI3 3HL H04
FYALSY ANV L3D0NS - 30NV IVE ONNd NI
SIONVHO ONY SFANLIGNIIXT SINNSATH 30 SINSWILVLIS FALVEVAADD
ENCEENES]
LOM1SIT TOCHDS SIHOISH AT 13MY38
L# 133HS

240w LIGIHX3

sweibosd JeinBas 101
sieelae sByo
syoogxa ]
$91|ddns |B1aLAD)
|oAR |
{ssuas Q0S5 - DOF) sao1uBes paseyund JayiQ
9SBUDING 35BS
SADIAIAS [BOIULIS] PESEYDING
5321A19S |EUORRINDR - |BUOISSSJ0Id PASBYNING
UOITINSUL 10} SBUBIES jal0)
‘Lonansul pangustpun - sweiord senBay

SIVIALIS [BUOREINPS [2UOISS}0.d paseyInd
sleloes) JO SBUBES
‘uopanIsUL awoy - sweiboud JeinBeay
Z1-6 SOPRIS
§-9 seprig
S°| SoPRJD
uapebiapury ; [looyasaid
sweuBoid JenBay - uousnnsy
ISNIJXT LNIFHEND

‘SIANLIONIdX3
sanuanay [giol

S82IN0% 8lBlS B0
pajabpng-uocu-uonnNquuoy AIUNDaS [BID0G JYd ] pasInquiay
paiabpng-uou-goueinsu} finigesiq wia ] -BuoT
paebpng uou-jeapepy Juswalay 1S04
Pa188pNq-uouU-9ON
paebpng-uou-sUOHNGUIUDY) JVd ] Heueg-ud
Piy uoieuodsues] 4qnd UON
PIy AJBUIDIORIXT
Pl BIEIS JOUIO
pry uonepodsusl | jeouobaen
pry Ajunoag [eouchbaie)
ply uoneanp3 jeredg

SQ0Ih0g BEIS

$80IN0G |20 [BIOL
SMOBUB|BISIY
salljekoy pue siuey
uoijng
spund aAIasay jepden uo palLed 1saia)uy
$ Ane xe] [Ba0T]
1§824N03 B30T
S3NNIATY

83



86'65¢'9 Z0'0€1'40Z 00'065€312 (oo 562°5) 00588'812
ZLZEE D R 005602 DU'S60°L
9z L2l . 29€790E 00'56¢'90Z (00'562'S) 00'062°LLZ
20%2%'0Z 0ZeTr'viSy LT IPE RS Y LZ'ELELEL 00 vESEar b
16309 EELYLIOT vZ 0SE 702 {9/ 0G8'8) 00 LOE'LLE
B2 209 000LY 8L L0 9/./09 00 0Ly
0z 0 08'£65'85 00'865'85 00°229'8) 0054229
£6°0 ESEEL'TYL IFPELERL (rs'188) 2091 EYL
el 21 S0¥'52Y 05951 0EY 05'9¥3 8% 00 06Y L6€
8E'8TL 79'652°9 [T 00 »av' .
5671 50050°612 00250642 00 508 b 00 LrZ 02
00t 05685 '£0Z 05009202 05'85L'9) 0065212
95 9EE 21°95C0L0E €LEB5 008 £ 062551 - 00 Z0€'5062 -
AT 1B6Y8 L ZLBEB'L ®L209) 00'ays's
04 /61 0L'679'8L5 08'9¥8'gLs 08'L8L°05 00'599'85%
1905 OL'LSLEPS'T 14 L0B'EYS'T L2gLLGLL 0060’82k’
£E EELBL LV ZET 659 08'G95°4/9 (0Z'£25°%3) 00689 ZEL
00°0€ 00'0E 00 0E
&%'0% L5 GPE 00'086 00 066
O 961 24 Ok 95LLL 0P 98L°LL
06 PGPl 05'9.8'21E OF LLEPLE (09°01+'39) 00'Z8F'28€
y5L 97’ 9/E'GPE 00'BLESFE (00'BED'E} 002L0'6YE
Y6 €L 9088/ ¢l2 00Z08€iZ {00 05L'6) 00 256 227
05 & 0SELD't 00410} {00 0E} 00270t
i 01 95PLLZIE 005827212 s {oo0ZL'8} S 00506'LE
THTIOAYINT TIN10Y F50n8 TvNid SINTWANTWY 1350na
1318 YHOAY S ANY SHIASNYHL IWNIDHO
JONYIHVA 139ang

c# 133HS

7102 0F INNF aSANT HYIA TVOSI3 3H1 |03
VN1V ANV 13DGE - 3ONV 1v8 NN NI
SIONVHD ONY SIANLIANIIXT SINNIATY 40 SINFWILVIS IAILVIVIWNOD
[{ERCEERNER)
1OM91SI0 T00H0S SIHOIEH AT 135438

|BIpBway / S oI1seg [Bla |
sallddng jeiauan)
$124oBa] 10 SSUBES

|RIpaway / SIHNS DIseq

uonesnp3 [eidads [e30]

Bl | - UB4 - SBHIGESI(] |OOUDSBId 12101
saiddng (eiaus)
UOINYSUL JOf SBLBIRS B0
SI8LOBS] JO SBLERS

Bl L- UBd - S3IIesi] 100Udsaid

WSy 1210 |
saddng jeJjauac)y
UOIINIISUI 0 SBURES JBUI0)
sisy3ea | Jo SAlERS
wsany

121UBY) 80IN0SSY f W00 821N0s3y 210 |
sanddng [eiauagy
Uol3nisul Joj sauefes Jayid
siayzes | Jo salUeeS

I8jUS7) 92IN0SAY / WOOY BANOSSY

stuauedwy Aclipny (2101
spslqo BUD
selddng jelsussy
SadMBg PRSBYDING IBLO
UOHONIISU| J0) SSUBIES JSUID
S18UOES| JO SBUEBES
spualedi) Aolpny

sangigesic sbenbue Jo/pue Buitiles |10,
sanadang [eiauan)
(s3lias QS - 00y} Se2IES paseyaind saI0
sioyoes | Jo SeileleS

sanyqesiq abenbue jojpue BulLesT

uohzonp3 [e10ads - uonRangsyy)

84



8L P9 LG 16962'L.9 60t ¥5'82, 50'690'6F 00'248'6.9
68°0VL'E LLZBGL 00 vy 0000F | 00 PYr'E
62 16¥'¥S 05 var'Ly 62 196°56 8.1968°1p 00°000'FS
0F 5£1'829 0€ $£1°829 080G 00'82Z% 229
ZL'89L'. EPBES HLS 55902'125 {8y 158°8) €0 855 DES
00519 00552 000/8 00'0.8
08ZZ8'L [BLZB'S L2912 12985 00'8SL'2
(€0'2LE) £0°TLE
28'188'1 67 921’62 98'/50°LE (vl /29T 00'$69'EE
S6'878°2 L6'¥8L'BLY Z6'€E0'28Y {80'621'9) 00 €9V 88Y
960 rOeER'LS 00 pER'LS 00 59 00'63L'LS
960 pO'EE8’LS 00'FES' LS 00'59 0069.°L5
BOEPS EL 08 9r8'S05°L 68'68E'6L5°L {11 98£°085) 00 98.'695'L
8L TFG'EL 0L'621'89¢ 69'/99'L8¢ (1+2¢9'9G) 00 0CE 88k
00'000°5E 0000051 00°C0C'SL
00000807 00°000'80% 00000'%2 00°000'v8E
0g0 0L'LeL YhL 00'Z2L P42 (00°v9L'ZE) 00’98 L2
09'£69'652 ZS'Li6'LYY'Te Z€'599'1027C 80'.6'88 vZ'8C.21922
6Z G6.'96 60'6.9'8¥9'H 8E PLV'GKL L {l6€46T) GEBYPBYLL
LE Pl /69:0°8 8Z'L60'8 Teiery) 005£28
tevl 168'9/0'8 8Z'160°8 zierl) 00'SET'8
LZ /€028 59 S06'pSO'L 98 ZrE'LrL L 1578862 GEGSOOLL'Y
£0'€€6 8l L6°ZLE6S 00'9PZ'8L 00'97E"L 00'006'0Z
0L's/8'8p STZrL'evl SE2L0'ZBL {coLov'2) SE'8LIB6L
8200161 24739669 00'690'68 co'ss 007L0'68
08'821L L2828 15'0L9'282 15'£88'ST 00€22'952
816597 9929t '85Z v¥ 228’092 vp'928°) 00'9¥6'85Z
00 2} 00 9£9'G 00'8Y9'S 00008 0088
8588 26°LLL°0L 05799k L (05'695°G) 00'ZEL 2L
0Z'09E'L QE'62g'1 2 05'686'22 05'6£8°2 00°051'02
00'E0 PP 6LL0ZZ ¥¥ 2e5'0Z2 v'a0L'e 00'9Lg'9LZ
10'%Z9 6'€0r 0Z1 08°£20°1ZL 1oz’e62'52) 00 ZZE'8bL
00051 00051 00°0SL
00'28¥ 00'L8% 00°LEY
00ze 0028 00ze
105 $  6L€0P0TH 08'807°0Z} s {ozese'se) 00802 '5pL
[ERERETOTZNgY TYNLOV I356ng TvNid SINSNANIWNY 135and
A18VHOAYS QNY SHIASNYHL AYNIDHO
3ONVIIVYA 1394N8
Z10Z 0€ 3NNT G30N3 dv3A vOSi3 3HL 504
TYNIOY GNY 1350N4 - SONY VS GNNI NI
SIONVHO ONV SIUNLIANIIXT SANNIATY JO SINTFWILVIS TALVIYANOS
QNN TVE3NTD
IOM9ISIJ TOOHDS SIHSIZH A3 13XY38
[ENEERT

W0, LIBIHXZ

SDIIDG PAIRIOY B L4 'LO 'U299dS - 539198 uoddng BYI0 10 L
sieuaey pue sanddng
$I0IAISS [BUOLEINDT - [EUDISSSJ0Id PRSELDING
SaUBES

5891AI8G PalElaY § Ld 1O ‘Uoseds - ssdiuas yoddng isyio

SNDS LNESH BI0 L
s128lqC +8UI0
sjeusiely pue salddng
{S8UBS O0S-00P} S80IISS PASELDING 18UIQ
SIS |EIIUYDS] puB [EUOISSSCId PESBYING
sauees

SEVIARG LNBdY

SE0IJRS HIOAA JBID0S PUE SOUBPUSHY [EIOL
ssUElES
15301AU9G RIOAA [2ID0T PUR 3OUBPUSLHY

uoiPNASU} - sainpuadxy panguIsipun B0 L
91B1S uym paddesipuel 8y} 1o S|00YIS 8leAld 0} UORINL
sjooyos Ae [euolBay ¥ SSD O UoHin
1ejnBay - Jowsi j00YaS [BUOIEDOA AIUNOD) O} UORINL
[B135dS - 81815 SU UIYIM ¥ Jali() 0 UoIpn |
JeinBay - SIS SUi LIKAA SV JSHIO O) uowny
tejnBay - 91RIG 8} UIylim S w3 1830 O) UoIN
‘uoRdSY|
‘sainpuadx ] paENGLySIPUn

uononuisy| - [BJOL
swielBold jeuononnsu a0 B0

welbold solniss AHUNWWos [ejo]
seleleg
welbold 3oBS ApUPMLWoD

S2NBIUY PRIOSLOAS jooYdS [BIGL
s1ealas 2o
s{eusiBp pue saddng
{saUag p0S-00E) $92es paseyd.nd
seuRES
SINBIULY paucsuods jooyos

noY JEJNoLINg-07 pasosuods [0oUds [BI0L
519860 BYID
sjeualew pue soiddng
(sauss 0pG-Q0E) $8IMUAG peseyTIng
saLejeg

§BIIADY IRINSIND-07) PRIOSUCTS |0oYS

uoneanp3 |[enbulg o,
salddng ereussy
(sauas 00S-00F) SIS PISBYNG JBLIO
S$9IIABG [EUOHEINDT-|ELOISSA0I- PIseyaIng
siayaea] jo soueieS

ucyeanp] enbuljig

85



0G'ZTLLE Sl 'vpBOP 5999585 (e 69g'0L) 00'9£6'89
00052 L 0005’1 00°05T'L
Z985%'S €0'Z8E'Y 59 0PB'OL (S£'651L°2) 00°C00'EL
00°000' 00052’ 000sZ'9 (00'000'8) 00 0SZ'vt
807 26'299'L 002992 (00°02} 00'289°L
088 0Z'6v5'CE 0065528 (oo o681} 00'672°Z€
SZ'Z8R'E S/ 29Z°EL8 00§l LiE (00°8Lp} 00'€29'Z/€
96 pEE 6SELZET Si'BYSEC SLE60'L 00'559CC
67 LLZ'E 9E'p25'TT S8'E62'6Z (5L evs) 00'5£5'92
0Z 028 08 biv'LZE 00508428 (oo 828} 00'££8'8Z€
LL896'S GL£29'9.6 Z6'1¥9'086 T80 vec’e) 00 5.6'€86
£6/0€C L0%ET'L 00 ZE5E Too cos'4} C02EY'S
£6'659'L L00¥2'2L 00°006'81 00006 00'000'8k

00'005's 00°005'52 (oozle'®) 002/8'eE
160 10'604'T€6 76'604'2€6 26'2€0'9 002.9'926
S08rL 6 b5 EpLEBL L 007262 ¢6) L {00BCePS) 00 Z6C 2bT |
ZE0LT'E 89 7L9'EL 00°G88°PL 00'588'7L
68'€¥9 [ANCTHRS 00°099°€ 00'099'¢
LZove's 67 6¥2'2Z 00°06%'62 0006’82
Z6'8 BO'ZL¥'96 0012796 (00'05L'+) 00'4£5'00%
ZLvp 8Z'16LLYO'E 00'9E8°LpO'L (00'058'6%) 00'989'260'k
00°0.2 66'2p6'/G0') 66212850} L€ Z9ETT 89'558'6E0'L

66'/F8'T 6678’ LeZesL 89'62ZE"|
SZT'ZEL 5210LZEL 00 VEZ'ZEL (co089'w) 00'bZE'9EL
SLLEL 5Z'866'226 00°9€L'E26 00'0ES'SZ 00'909'268
2e0 8O 0BE /6P 00 LBE /5P 0019270l 00 0ZL'ESE
Z€a 8908E /GY 00 L8E'LSP S 0019Z'%0L $ 000ZL'€sE

ITaVIOAVIND) TYNLOY 135dN8 TvNid SINSNGNINY 139an8
ANBYHOAYS ANY SHI4SNVEL IVNIOYO
SONYIHYA L139ang
£10Z "0 INIT 30N ¥V3A 1¥OSId 3HL 503
TYLVY ONY 139008 - 3ONY V8 ANDA Ni
SIONVHO ANV STUNLIANTXT SINNITATY JO SINTAZLVIS SAILVHYIW0D
ANN TVHINTS
IOrY1SIO TOOHOS SIHDIFA A3 13438
v# 133HS

wb~On LIGIHX3

saaimag Buiuier) Ueig |puoRansy| 2101
sieuslelw pue sajjddng
(sauas pOG-00t) Sa%mas paseysind Jayin
SITIMSS [BUCHEINPT-[BUOISSSI0Id PAseydIng
SIURBISSY |BOUSID) PUB [BURIAI08S JO SaLBES
UoNOMSU} O 510SIABdNS JO SauRES

seoiniag Buiuies) Jels feuononisul

AueJqi |0DLDS / S83IAISS BIPSK [BUOIEDNPT ()01
s18ia Jano
sjeuajew pue saiddng
saugRs

AJBJgiT 0OUDS [ SE0IASS BIPAK {RUDHEDNDS

HE}S JBUONONLISY) - S80IA18S LOddNS JaUIO
J S92IAJ9S UOHINIISUT JO JUBWISACIGW} {B10 ]
s|eus)ew pue saddng
$821A3G "UOB| PUE 'jOId UMIRd JAUIQ
SJUBISISSY |EDUS[D) PUE [RUBIAINSS [0 SaueeS
UOIDMISU| JO S10SIAJENS JO SaueieS

sweaj ApMS PIUD B30
sjeudle pue sayddng
(sauas O0S-00F) SEDIAIBS PBSEUMNG JAO
$30IAJSG [BUOIEINP T [BUOISSS)0id PBSEYDING
SIUBISISSY [BOUSED PUE [BUBIAIDES JO SaLe(eS
HEIS {PUOISSS01d JBYI() JO SBLRES

'swea] ApMiS Py

FouUEPING [BIO}
sjgualew pue saiddng
SUBISISSY [eolial) Pue [BHBIRI0aS JO SaURRS
JIBIS [BUOISSROIG JBUIQ 10 SBlBjES
2OUBPING

SEOIISS BIXT ~ SJUBPMS - SITIASS PoddnsS JBLIC [BJoL

seUEeS
SSIMAG BIXT - SJUSPMG - S8IUSS HoddnS Jayi0

86



sanljioe4 100LIS JO) FIUBLBIUIE painbay 1210

|ddng [eieuan

seDIABS SouBLajLIRK PUE seday 'Bulies|)

saueeg

SONNISE |00YDS JO; SaLBUSIUIRK Painbay

ABOJOULDS | UOIELLIOJL SARNSIUILDY |BJOL

sjeualey pue saiddng

S90INBS PESEYDING JBUi)
$39|AJaS [BLOISSDJOIH PISBLUIING

soLEeS

ABOIOUGDA | UOHBUIO)U) SANBISIMILPY

F010ag [BAUSY [BIOL

saunppuadx3 snoauEBISIKY

sjuaWaal By aseusing 9sBaT U 1S3Jau]

s|euajeyy pue senddng

[¥65 1/0K005-00%) $82MMBS paseyasnd OSIN

souelRg
80IABSG [BIUBD

LONBASIVIUPY JOOURS 59

ag poddng |ejay

m.m:mﬁ,_z pue sayddng
Noded UONRIBA PaSNUMY

SJURISISS Y [BOUS|D) PUE JRUBLAI23S JO SaUBIES

8Y Ore 'SP S 0Ep’L08 £9'022°9v8 S8Z/L'es 9. L6G'€92
9z’ /0e'42 92°08L°/€1 Zo'gsv'ast A 8/.e/b'8LL
LLOPS'ET ¥2'9/0'66¢2 L9LL9'2Ze L9'€/5'69 00'pP0'€SZ
Sr2sp §5'Z/L'S8E 00'589'59¢ {00'S512'92) 00'08€'Z6¢
15°08r'S b6 088 bOF [ S 260781 00 692 ¥8Z
05 52/ 05 G2 o5 b2 000001
€0'ees’} GE'EEY'PBL 8€'99Z'981 8E'LET'09} 00'620'9Z
epLeL’t #1'55€'9H 25°90F 241 15 6¥2'8) 00 22266
550 Gp'Z6R'€9l 00°€68'€9L 00'088'S 0C'EL0'8SE
B b6 2 £5'¢00'ESY 208v6'9.F 00ZHE'LL 20°'9e8'59k
00ZE€ 42 SSPES OV 5999619 1962922 v0 £62'6E
{00'000°Z1) 000002}
L0'88F'€ 8oLzl BYBEIEL (AT AN 86'9682'91
18611 18'626'Z 89 G60'E (z€ ¥05) 00009'€
197 6€°181'26€ 00984'Z6€ (00'0L'2) 00'959'P6€
2ELSEL SLOS9'pos’L 17186 LL8"L 1002629 S 190 P08’ L
86'611L'9 1212261 ST LPE'ST 61'5€8'y o L1502
1522 80Z8LEL 99'602'EL 99'60Z'EL
883071 PE'685'8ES ZT16L'6E5 ZTBOE'L 00'Z8P'2ES
681 SPLEQ'ERZ'L PEEEQ'EHT L 85952 00'890°1G2'L
67 0£€°102 $8'920'520'L €€ GE'9ET'L #8095 0 6% 96/'G6L 'L
9 956 L 99926 02 26'088'82 l8o'6L1°2) 00°000°9€
00LI8Y 00’6872 00 00€'Z4 000005 00 COE"2
06 'bvZ 0L'SGLL 00'000°Z 00'000'} 00°000°L
96 669’62 ez eor LL PTEOL Ly 0000422 pZ'e0r'8l
79’964 'L 9v'029'852 OLLLp'pLZ oL'28e'02 00'080'¥52
£98/0's €€ 6628 00'9E'elL 00'9LE'L 00°000°Ct
95'9/9'6 9T GLL'OY Z8'S6€'95 ZYS6E L 00°000'SH
0L €5t 06'659'85 00'oL8'ss (oo'ops) 00°055'65
00058'0L 00CSL'Yy 00'000'GL 00 00§52 00'00S "2
01 'p08'0p 06'0LZ' 2 00'6LL '8y (005851} 00°00Z'29
Q0'006'6€ 00°006'8E (00089'2) 00°085'2p
L9'650'2S ££'911'¢8 00'9Lp'GLL 0092p'8 00°000° 204
EQEOL'VZ Z9°6.'96Y SZ€85°025 (00°00L' 24} ST€89'485
[S19VE0AYINT TWNIOY 199ang T¥NiH SINIWANINY 135an8
319YHOAYS NV SH3ISNYYL IYNIDHO
JONYIFIYA 139ang
Z10Z '0€ INNF 03aN3 ¥v3A 1v0SId 3HL 903
TYNLOV ONY 1390N8 - JONV 1v8 GNNF NI
SIONVHD QNV STUNLIGNIdXT SINNIATY 40 SINTWILVLS FAILVEYINOD
NERLEERER]
I3791SIG TO0HDS SIHDEH AT 13%y38
S#133HS

WLOw HBIHX3

sjedipund 1s8v / sjedibilg jo saurjeg
UOKRASILIWPY |00YIS SadAAg poddng

UOHRISIILUPY [B13UIS) SadABS Doddng |Bjo

seed pue sang diysiaqwsaiy 308
saunypusdx3 SNOBUE}EISIY
saiddng buyesy/Buiues | asnoH ul 308

seijddng jeisuany

sauNppuadx3 sno2Ue||S0SIK

sE0IBS

paseyaIng JBu0

auoyda|s1 / SUOKBIILNLLWOD

SBOINGS |EORILOR |
SAVINISS [BUDISSAY0IY
B

“UOHBRSILILPY [BISUSY) SIS Loddng

paseynd Jayd
paseuding JsuiQ

ag BuusauiBugieimdalyy
$894 11PNy (CAL07) [ELSIU pue aunppuadx]

sao1Mag |eBa
SSLEBES

87



9/'8/TL6 09 /GLpT6 L 9T 9EF'SL08 ($916S'EL L) 00 /802508

¥9'LG8'ZEL $9 16828 L ¥90L6'09
050 05°Lor'E 002Z9%'E 00°Z9% 00'000°€
£4'626'9 2202069 00°000'9Z {00'000'9) 00'000'Z8
8’ 1£8°9L 69°0LE'L82'9 21ZrL'pee'e (e8'zog’18L) 00'SPY'SYS'9

00'055'60Z 00°055'60Z 00'L¥6°1L) 00'L6Y'LZZ
Levee 68'LLTV8S 00°095'£85 00°508°€L 00'SS2'v2LS
¥889L°t t9L0L°2€9 S5 048'1¥9 SSy/6'0L 00 968'0£9
66927981 LE'9ST 165 | 29208/} {00959} 0E'999'€P8"]
Ll pLy'E [EEEE S €08'9k 00005'S SLEDE'LL
00622 00'0L¥' 2L 006Gy, 2L 00§21
Sv'/58'92 v8 190v9E 6Z 616'06€ (L2'650'ZZL) 00 B26'ZLS
0T'LL6'E 08'018°LL 00'Z8L'LT {o0'cos'e) 00'282'ST
95 £5L LY 6Z0L6'SE 59°€99' 22 SE'EQ9 /L
Z5'65EpL 8Y'SBZ E6S 00'L¥9'209 00'Lb9'209
0T rLg'Lt 08'Ze8'Z91L 00LP'PLL (o0'000'Z1) 00°29'981
69'926'9€ S609S' P v /8 LLL ¥9'680'99 00°86€°SY
L0E8T LY €9 L1015 02'09€'86 0£'09¢'86
SELLL G9'562°9L1 COELG'OLL (00'000'2€} 00'EL6ESH
860 0 €T G 00 ¥Z¥'Sy 000Z'F 00 bSL LY
180 61°889°E0L 00'8E£9'E0L 00°090'EE 006504
12225} £2.i879 £00Cr'8 {00 000'2) 000005
12°225°) €T LYY 00000°€ {o0000°2) 00°000'S
95's/8'02 ¥¥ €80'5pL 00 657’591 00 /£8'€Z 00Zz9'Lrl
zL'SBZZL 9Z'556'6 0015222 {00'%89'6) 00'GES EE
19'68€°2 BE'69Y'LS 00'658'85 oo'oLs's) 00'525°29
£Z 069 22°859'c8 00'BVE'¥8 008 1€ oozLL'iy
S0'SYb'eT) ELGLEPBET 8L'0Z82LST TOLLLLL 95'8v0'0rb'Z
96 £88'99 05 €46'28€ o 258'v0F 05 916’2 96'0v6'96€
S0'699'6Z S0'Z90'E8L OL'LELTIT (05'99L"LL) 09'268'€22
28ViTS 9T'GI2EL 80'06Y'82 {Z6'652'22) 00°052'L0L

00'0€0'0Z 00'0€0°02 0ODED'0Z
27 8S6'LL aL'ges L1 £5'189°egL 15'680'pS 00'209'69
61'482°C LiZpl'se 06'66E"LE {01 °00%'%) 00008 +¥

v Spp'L or'Sep'L op'SppL
96°09b'2 LLELL'LES'L L9VLLBEQL $  L00v9TS 00'825'985 '+

FTeVEOAVINT IVNLIY 139an8 N3 SINSNONINY 139ana
/A78va0AYS AONV SHIASNVHL TYNISHO
IONVIIYA 139an8
Z10Z '0€ 3NNF U30NT dv3A oS IHL J04
IYNLIY ONY 135004 - IONY 1vE GNN Ni
SIONVHO ONV SSANLIGNIdXT SINNSATY JO SINSWILVIS SAILVIVAWNCD
[SEREERER]
ID/91S13 TOOHSS SIRSEH AT 139938
o# I33HS

3700 1i8IHX3

s)yauag askojdwy - s)ysusg pPaIE20|RUN (BI0L
uswAed yois pashun
spjeuag askojdwiy BUIQ
SJUBLIBSITIqUISY UCKINg

syausq yHEsH

Uonesusdwo?) s USWYIOAR
SY3d - SUONNQUILDY JUBWAINAY BYIO
SUORNGUILOY) ALNoaS [BI70S

‘Slijeuag aakojdw] - sjuaLag palesolleun

S321A19G UOREHOASUBI ] JUSPNIS [B10)

saliddng [prsusg)

uoneHOdsURL] - SATIAIAG PISBLAING SNOBLE|[RISHN
sUBlWARY #1817 Ul piyy - SE0lUBS PajoRAUo)
sIopuaA - ('$PIS P ¢S 5a0IMBS 1PIRIUCD

slopusa - {(jooyss pue
BWOH Usamlag Uyl JBLID) SE0IABS PRDEAUD)
SI0PUBA - {O0UDS § SWOH LU9amag) SRIAIIS PapPRIUG)
SIUBWARA NaIy Ul pry -~ Sa0IASS PaEUOD

SIALABY 95Ba7

saalAag anleusjuIRi pue liedsy '‘Bulues|)
UolBUIOGSURI) JALID) - SaUeleS
je1oads - {jooyds pue swoH
usamag) uonepOdsuRI| [Idng 10 SBLEES
senbay - {jooyos pue swop
Usamag) uolleodsues) |idnd 40) saLees
$821AJ9G UONELOOSURI] JuspnIS

funoag gjo)
saiddng
Anyeg

sSpuno.cy Jo daaxdn pue aied 210

saljddng j2ieuag)

S3OAUBS soUBUBIUIB PUB Hedsy ‘Buiues|D

saueesy

spunous jo daexdn pue ase)

S90/AJRS [EIROISNT) {BIO L
(Apupalg pue jeaH) ABiauz
(seq) [euneN) Abiaug

sayddng [RiaueD
aouenSU|

saolaeg Auadold paseyaing JaylQ
$80/AB8S S3UBUSIUER pue Jeday Buluesrd
WBlLAB4 LOREDEA paSNUN

seugRS
SEOIAISS [BIPGISND

88



68'668'205 - €C 095 1Lt (956227965 L) {00'6EL'952} (95'652'€90°L)
(T L21'8pr°S) 99'L40'968'E5 95 ¥68'6r'8Y 00'6EL 952 oSkivall ey

05708229 05 0€2'29 05022 00'000'09

0G5 0EZ 29 05°0€2'29 05 CETT 0000009

0S0EZ 29 05 0£2'29 0S5 CEZT 00 00009
(zg°e5r'182) SBG//'SPO'L 86'LZEY9E'L {z0'z65'08L) 00 ¥E6PPS L
(e2'960°265'L) €2 960265}
(€2'980°265'1) €2'960°265 |
00ZESLOE'L 00 PER'6Z 00'99F°/€E"} Too'¥20'sEL) 0006PTLY L

0O ¥E6'62 00'¥€6'62 00 €662

(00 #20°GEL) 00 ¥Z0'SEL

00°£6T£LT'L 00262717} 002622121
00'5€2°06 00'5€€'06 00 $£2'06
9E'09Z¢€ Z95r. 8L 86 50022 Tz0895°6H} 00 ¥.5'29

vebeL PB VT2 [EIE D C0'GEL6L
00'05Z'€ 000009 00 0ST'6 {00 ZZ8'0L) 00 2£0'0Z
9g0L pa'825'¢ 00'685° {00'8LL'%T} 00'29€'9Z

vi 2vr'g vl Zvr's vl Zey's
00058y 00058 00 058'%
(GZ€2L'391°S) £€'690°061 25 80 ZrEEZ0 LY Z5 005 ey 95005°L15'gy
(S0 21v'ezy's) L8'€60"aYL '8 929:9'1ZEVE ¥ €95°GPE Ze'ZLL'868°€T
lsovog'8eZ'd) 59¥096E2'9
{59°Z06'789'L) S9'Z0B'r8g’L
(o0 282'%) 002821
(00'222'890'¢} 00'£22'890'
(00'16.'98) 00'1L6L'98
(00'26¢'56€°T) 00'£6%'S6E'Z

(378Va0AYINN) WALV FELRDERTYE] SINTWANIWY 135and
/ATEYHOAYS ANY SHIISNYHL TYNISHO
FONVINYA 139ang
£1.0Z "G 3INNT G3ANI ¥v3A WISI3 3AL H0d
IYNLIY ONY 139CNEG - IONYIVE GNN4 NI
SIONYHD ANV STENLIANTIIXT SINNIATE 40 SINTNILVIS JAILTIVINOD
ONNd WY3INIS
IOIEISIO JOCHDS SIHSOER AT 137938
T#133KHS

wb-Cw LIBIHX3

sainppuadxa (Japun} Jaro
sanuaAsl jo (fouaioyap) $589x3

SIUNLIANTIXF TVLOL
ST00H3JS Tvid3dS TvL0L
1G0LDS J3WWNS [BICL

SJoUDEI} O SaURRS
LIONIMLISUI - [004DS JBWWNS
STICOHIS ¥ID3dS

AYILNO TY¥LidvD Tv10L
(paiabpng-uou} sases} jeuded JapuUn PaIINhIE S18SSE |B10 L

Juawdinbg
sainppusdxa pANaUISIpUN
(parebpng-uou) sasea] jeuded Japun painbae siassy

S82IA8S LORCNASUCT PUB UONISINDOY Saniloe 101
Buipun g ¥QS ©o 23IASS 193Q 10} JUBSSASSY
|ediduud - sjusweaibe aseyoind ases|
Sa0IAIBS UCHONISUOT
s39ines Buusatibuarimoanyoiy

580IMBS LUORDMIISUOY) PUE UonISinhoy senyiey

wawdinbg jejo)
Jenbay-sasng [ooLoS
spuroicy jo deexdn pue aijen - ‘puadx3 PaINGUISIPUN
ABojouyoa} OJul "LILIPY-PIINGLISIPUN
Z16 SApeIS
Juawdinbzg

anasay jeudey) o] psodaq 1saiaiy|
TAYILNO Y LIAYD

JASNIdKI LNIHEND - STANLIANILXS WICL
saunypuadx3 penNauIsIpun (810 L

{pa1aBpng-ucN) SUCNINQUILOD JYd 1 JIEYSE-UQ |BIOL

pa136pNng-uoL-UoORNGLILOT} AILNDBS [BD0S JYd ! PasINgLUIRY

pelebpng-uocu-adueinsy; Alqesiq uus -Buo
paiaBpng uou-EIPa JUBLUANSY 1504
pa1aBpng-uou- SN
pa18BpNa-Uou-SUOINGUILOD JYd L JBueg-uQ
“{paysbpng-uoN) suosnguiuoD Jvd | Jleusg-u0

89



LS LLB'LIVY g

foo1eoit)

LS Z0S'EBS' P $

9009 £iCTL

LU PEE'SLS'L

61 95L'9EL

00'8EL'SED

S8ELSBLE s
ZLPop'LELL $ 157Z05°c8s’y S  BEBEN'98L'T $ (00'6EL'952) $ 6EBLGELLE

$6 2227281y G6 .24 Z8L'Y EITING
ZLVOr /6L 95’2 00% {os'6€2°96E° L) (00'6£1 952} 135652'€90°F)
(£Z ¥95'682) £Z'495'632
00'Z¢5'L0E°L (oozesLoe )
(£Z'960°265°L) $  EZ'960°465°} 3 5 3

[EREEEIYEND) IVNIOV 139aN8 NI SINIWANISAY 135dna
/31avHoAY4 ANV SHIASNYHL TYNIDEO
JONYIIYA 139ang
ZV0Z 08 3NNF A30NT HY3A 17031 IHL 804
WALDY QNY 135008 - IONY1vE ANNd NI
SIONYHD OV S TN UONISY3 SINNIATY 30 SINTWILYIS JAILYEVdNGD
[CIERLEERER]
IOM1ISI0 JOCHSS SIHOIRH AT 1038
[EEERT

+4-0. LIBIHXS

{dvvO) spuny jejuswwaach sad eoueleq pung

51SBq YYD Uo paziuBooss jou yuawded pie 1es & ok
(dYVD) sluswialels spung IeluawiwWerob of uolepUosay

aoueleq punj paubisseun
anpsal jeidea - papLsey
Jeak juslnd - snidins $S30X3 - pa}ILISaY

sainppuadxa ek Jusnbasgns so; payeubisep - snjdins sseaxa - paaLsey

saoUBIqQUINoUa pua-Jeak - paubissy
‘uonejnydeday

OF sUNf "saduUBjE] puUnd
L Anr ‘ssouejeq puUnyg

saanos Bunueuy
Jaylo pue sasmpuadxs Jaylo pue sanypuadxa
J9A0 $32UN0s BuUouBLY 9O PUR S3NUIAal JO 5$83X3

s33n0s Buueul) Ja10 10
swaloid |eudea o1 Aepno |ENdeD - INo UBSURI)
{poyebpng-uoy) asea eides) wiol) spassoly
(sasn} saoinas Guisueuy JeUIG

90



£69¢8'ch G9'Z9L'0cL 8L66L'¥LL $ 8LGLF6YL $ 0008.VZ9
¥6°£99'61 6L0V9° LPL €L ¥0g 191 £lL'ser 20l 00'6+8'8G
29282 8e°/98' 005519 00'SSL'S
00'eee’ee 00°¢Ee’ez 00'cee’ee

££'902'8l 1392828 £1°¢E0'901 €L'¥81'G9 006780V
000sL'L 00'€l9've 00¢8.'6Z 0082 0000081
85CLL'VE 9¥'22/'885 50'G68°C19 S0'¥96'9 00°1£6°695
656 Lt LGP 00'L9% 00 19
9z vil'E) 50'9vv'Zs L£02Z'99 1£°089'6¢ 00'0¥G'0¢
#/'888'S 00 €29°0vF ¥/'19G6'9b¥ (9z'628'81) 00°LBE'S9Y
00005 ¥ 0025156 00'259'66 $ 00z99'62 $ 000000
(eggeg’ey) $9'29¢'0¢/ gLB6L Y.L ¢ 8lL6LY'EYL $ 0008229
(v6'669'EH) ¥2'01.282, gL 0LP'gLL 8L'0£9' /L 00082729
(6G'9¢1L) LP'Z69'L 00'682°L 00682'L
JvN1OV O1 1¥NI4d TYNLOV 135an3a SINIWANTAY 139and

JDONVIHYA ToNI4 /SHM34SNYHL 139an4g IYNIDIHG

«¢"Ou LI8IHX3

2102 °0€ INNT G3ANT SHVIA TvISid HO4

aNN4d 3NN3IATY TVI03dS

JTINATHOS NOSIHYdINOD AdvY132and

SIHOIEH AFTIHE3G 4O dIHSNMOL

salnjipuadxs |Bjo ]
sgorueg Hoddng [Bje ]

s|eusjepy pue sanddng

$80IAUBG PasSEYINg IBYID

SJIAISG |BDIUYDS | /JBUOISSS)0. 4 PASEUDING

sjjauag asiojduwig se0IAlag paseyaing
‘sa3i/uag poddng

uolINIISU| [BI0 ]

HOOGIXS ]
salddng |eisuac)
S32IAUBS PESEYING JBUID
sisyoea] Jo seuees
‘uopoNAIsu|
-S3UNLIANIdX3

SaNUaAY |Bjo]|
$30IN0g |eispad

S20IN0S ABIS
SINNIATH

91



TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP revenues and expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previously it was recognized for budgetary purposes.

The last state aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary purposes
and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33)

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that encumbrances
are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.

Adjust for encumbrances:

Add prior year encumbrances

Less prior year encumbrances canceled
Less current year encumbrances

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures” from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Adjust for encumbrances:
Add prior year encumbrances
Less prior year encumbrances canceled

Less current year encumbrances

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - governmental funds

92

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL

GENERAL REVENUE

FUND FUND

$ 54,009,232.01 $  730,362.65
108,835.00
(111,631.00)

13,322.38

(28.89)

(7,181.01)

$ 54,006,436.01 $  736,475.13

$53,898,071.68 $  730,362.65

13,322.38

(28.89)

(7,181.01)

$ 53,898,071.68 $  736,475.13




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART lii
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
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NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- PART Hi
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Public Employees Retirement System

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions: The discount rate changed from 4.90% to 3.98% as of
June 30, 2016.

Teacher Pension and Annuity Fund

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions:  The discount rate changed from 4.13% to 3.22% as of
June 30, 2016.

99

EXHIBIT "L-4"



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "E-2"

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SQURCES:
Capital reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Reconciliation to GAAP Financial Statements:
Fund Balance- Budgetary Basis (Exhibit F-2)

Less: Unearned Revenue (GAAP Basis)

Fund Balance- GAAP Basis (Exhibit B-1)

Reserved for Encumbrances
Restricted for Capital Projects
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1,307,532.00

1,307,532.00

159,294 .41

1,841,525.41

2,000,819.82

(693,287.82)

(693,287.82)

2,183,846.54

1,490,558.72

1,490,558.72

1,489,360.08

1,198.64

1,198.64

1,198.64



EXHIBIT "F-2A"

TOVWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -
MARY KAY MCMILLIN ECS
BUDGETARY BASIS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COoSsT

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

SDA Grant $ 163,791.00 § $ 163,791.00 §$ 163,791.00

Capital Reserve 16,200.00 16,200.00 245,687.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 163,791.00 16,200.00 179,991.00 409,478.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Qther Purchased Professional and Tech. Services 9,725.00 2,824.00 12,5649.00 69,611.00

Construction Services 152,380.68 152,380.68 339,867.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 9,725.00 155,204.68 164,929.68 409,478.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures $ 154,066.00 § (139,004.68) §$ 15,061.32

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 0310-035-14-1004-G04

Grant Date 2/24/2014

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorization
Bonds issued

Qriginal Authorized Cost $ 409,478.00
Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $ 409,478.00
Percentage Increase over Qriginal Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 40.28%
Qriginal Target Completion Date 6/30/17
Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOQL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-2B"

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

THOMAS P. HUGHES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Compietion Date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 420,098.00 420,088.00 § 420,098.00

109,480.00 108,480.00 630,148.00

529,578.00 529,578.00 1,050,246.00

1,975.94 7,834.00 9,909.94 147,034.00

193,500.46 193,599.46 903,212.00

195,575.40 7,934.00 203,509.40 1,050,246.00
$ 334,002.60 (7,934.00) 326,068.60

0310-020-14-1002-G04
2124/14

$ 1,050,246.00
1,050,246.00
19.38%

6/30/117
6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOQOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-2C"

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDRED JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

WILLIAM WOODRUFF ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 360,700.00 360,700.00 § 360,700.00

145,730.00 145,730.00 541,051.00

506,430.00 506,430.00 901,751.00

3,214 .31 12,704.00 15,918.31 126,245.00

242,043.89 27,075.00 269,118.89 775,506.00

245,258.20 39,779.00 285,037.20 901,751.00
$ 261,171.80 (39,779.00) 221,392.80

0310-050-14-1006-G04
2/24/14

$ 901,751.00
901,751.00
31.61%

6/30/17
6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PRQJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

COLUMBIA MIDDLE SCHOOL

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 1,076,340.00 1,076,340.00 1,076,340.00

22,250.00 1,063,932.00 1,086,182.00 1,614,511.00

1,098,590.00 1,063,932.00 2,162,522.00 2,690,851.00

95,423.99 31,150.00 126,573.99 430,536.00

252,586.77 1,446,743.20 1,699,320.97 2,260,315.00

348,010.76 1,477,893.20 1,825,903.96 2,690,851.00
$ 750,579.24 (413,961.20) 336,618.04

0310-030-14-1003-G04
3/3/14

$ 2,690,851.00
2,690,851.00
67.86%

6/30/17
6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-2E"

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

GOVERNOR LIVINGSTON HIGH SCHOOQOL

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 249,263.00 249,263.00 § 249,263.00

82,843.00 131,400.00 214,243.00 373,895.00

332,106.00 131,400.00 463,506.00 623,158.00

16,781.87 19,311.00 36,092.87 143,326.00

211,490.35 215,326.53 426,816.88 479,832.00

228,272.22 234,637.53 462,909.75 623,158.00
$ 103,833.78 (103,237.53) 596.25

0310-005-14-1001-G04
2/24114

$ 623,158.00
623,158.00
74.28%

6/30/17
6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL, DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

MOUNTAIN PARK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds tssued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

EXHIBIT "E-2F"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 273,958.00 $ 273,958.00 §$ 273,958.00

410,937.00

273,958.00 273,958.00 684,895.00

1,050.00 921.41 1.971.41 97,885.00

147,293.59 147,293.59 587,010.00

148,343.59 921.41 149,265.00 684,885.00
$ 125,614.41 (921.41) $ 124,693.00

0310-040-14-1005-G04

$ 684,895.00
684,885.00
21.79%

6/30/17
6/30/17
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS

BUDGETARY BASIS
345 PLAINFEILD AVE
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Capital Reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Other Purchased Professional and Tech. Services

Total Expenditures and other financing uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Autherized Cost
Percentage increase over Original Autherized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

EXHIBIT "F-2G"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
3 96,000.00 96,000.00 96,000.00
96,000.00 96,000.00 96,000.00
84,450.00 84,450.00 96,000.00
84,450.00 84,450.00 96,000.00
$ 11,550.00 11,550.00

$ 96,000.00
96,000.00
87.97%

6/30/18
6/30/17
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PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICES FUND: This fund provides for the operation of food services
within the school district.
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ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Interfunds
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Capital Assets:
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Totai Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabie

Unearned revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

EXHIBIT "G-1"

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-MAJOR
FOOD
SERVICE TOTALS
$ 2,963.23 2,963.23
46,477.20 46,477.20
7,599.94 7,599.94
57,040.37 57,040.37
272,921.22 272,921.22

(203,969.56)

(203,969.56)

68,951.66 68,951.66

125,992.03 125,992.03

5,699.00 5,699.00

24,231.79 24,231.79

29,930.79 29,930.79

29,930.79 29,930.79

68,951.66 68,951.66

27,109.58 27,109.58

$ 96,061.24 96,061.24
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EXHIBIT "G-2"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSTION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

NON-MAJOR
FOOD
SERVICE TOTALS
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales $ 986,758.21 $ 986,758.21
Special Functions 9,929.79 9,929.79
Total Operating Revenues 996,688.00 996,688.00
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales 449 316.59 449,316.59
Salaries and employee benefits 361,496.21 361,496.21
Other purchased services 57,505.27 57,505.27
Supplies and materials 29,311.05 29,311.05
Miscellaneous 69,934.62 69,934.62
Depreciation 7,532.00 7,532.00
Total Operating Expenses 975,095.74 975,095.74
Operating Income 21,592.26 21,592.26
Change in net position 21,592 .26 21,592 .26
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year (as restated) 74,468.98 74,468.98
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 96,061.24 $ 96,061.24
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EXHIBIT "G-3"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments for employees’ salaries and benefits
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources
Transfers from/(to) other funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing

Activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Operating income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Net Amortization

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase / (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
(Increase) / Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase / (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) by Operating Activities
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUI

FOOD
SERVICE TOTALS
$ 1,031,49531  § 1,031,495.31

(361,496.21)
(605,568.08)

(361,496.21)
(605,568.08)

64,431.02 64,431.02

(61,596.65) (61,596.65)

(61,596.65) (61,596.65)

(2,373.27) (2,373.27)

(2,373.27) (2,373.27)

461.10 461.10

2,502.13 2.502.13

$ 296323 § 2,963.23
$ 2159226 §$ 21,592.26
7.532.00 7,532.00

(2,332.18) (2.332.18)

29,454.73 29,454.73

5,352.58 5,352.58

2,831.63 2,831.63

$ 64,431.02 $ 64,431.02




FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets when a school district is functioning

Unemployment Compensation
Insurance Trust Fund:

Student Activity Fund:

Payroll Agency Fund:

Scholarship Trust Fund:

either as a trustee or as an agent for another party.

This trust fund is used to account for board contributions which are utilized to pay
unempioyment compensation claims as they arise.

This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at the schools.

This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the school! district.

This trust fund is used to account for assets held by the district for grants to students
where there are no restrictions regarding the use of principal and interest.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Unemployment
Donations

Total contributions

Investment Earnings:
Interest Earned

Net Investment Earnings

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:
Scholarships awarded
Unemployment claims and contributions
Total deductions
Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

EXHIBIT "H-2"

PRIVATE
PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
TRUST COMPENSATION
FUNDS TRUST TOTALS
4748250 § 47,482.50
5,352.83 5,352.83
5,352.83 47,482.50 52,835.33
36.21 1,567.70 1,603.91
36.21 1,567.70 1,603.91
5,389.04 49,050.20 54,439.24
2,459.40 2,459.40
8,087.87 8,087.87
2,459.40 8,087.87 10,547.27
2,929.64 40,962.33 43,891.97
8,600.59 300,555.41 309,156.00
11,530.23 341,517.74  $ 353,047.97
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EXHIBIT "H-3"
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

CASH
BALANCE CASH DISBURSE- BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2016 RECEIPTS MENTS JUNE 30, 2017
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24108336 $ 37369842 % 37463820 $ 240,143.58
Total assets $ 241,083.36 % 37369842 § 37463820 $ 240,143.58
LIABILITIES:
Due student groups $ 24108336 % 37369842 % 37463820 % 240,143.58
Total liabilities $ 24108336 $ 37369842 % 37463820 % 240,143.58
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EXHIBIT "H-4"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2016 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2017
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 843,717.47  § 19,342,71007 $ 19,536,846.89 § 649,580.65
Total assets $ 843,717.47 $  19.342,710.07 $  19,536,846.89 $ 649,580.65
LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions and withholdings $ 84371747  § 19,342,710.07 $ 19,536,846.89 § 649,580.65
Total liabilities $ 843,717.47 $ 1934271007 $ 1953684689 §$ 649,580.65
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-110 J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5to J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place.  J-14 to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

(rate per $100 of assessed value)

UNAUDITED
Calendar
Year Ended Berkeley Heights Berkeley Heights

Dec. 31 Public Schools Township Union County Total
2008 1.91 0.54 0.65 3.10
2009 1.93 0.56 0.67 3.15
2010 1.99 0.61 0.72 3.32
2011 2.1 0.65 0.82 3.569
2012 2.1 0.67 0.84 3.61
2013 2.1 0.69 0.91 3.70
2014 2.18 0.72 0.95 3.84
2015 2.24 0.75 0.96 3.95
2016 2.23 0.76 0.98 3.97
2017 2.27 0.76 1.00 4.03

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

Note:
NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax
levy . The levy when added to other components of the district's net budget may not
exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth limitation
calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or
2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any appending growth adjustments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the

budget and the net valuation taxable
b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of

the Levy Collections in
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage of Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2008 $ 33,530,161 $ 33,530,161 100.00%
2009 $ 35,590,058 $ 35,590,058 100.00%
2010 $ 36,382,437 $ 36,382,437 100.00%
2011 $ 37,453,338 $ 37,453,338 100.00%
2012 $ 37,760,107 $ 37,760,107 100.00%
2013 $ 37,178,657 $ 37,178,657 100.00%
2014 $ 37,878,567 $ 37,878,567 100.00%
2015 $ 39,023,112 $ 39,023,112 100.00%
2016 $ 38,458,663 3 38,458,663 100.00%
2017 $ 40,836,212 $ 40,836,212 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State
Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property
tax balance in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

EXHIBIT "J-11

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Net General Actual Taxable
Ended General Obligation Bonded Debt Total Municipal Value ? of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Assessed Value Property Per Capita b
2008 $ 27,878,000.00 -0- 27,878,000.00 $ 1,836,197,210.00 1.52% $ 2,09562
2009 26,743,000.00 -0- 26,743,000.00 1,861,813,120 1.44% 1,990.40
2010 25,483,000.00 -0- 25,483,000.00 1,852,981,420 1.38% 1,928.19
2011 24,179,000.00 -0- 24,179,000.00 1,779,899,770 1.36% 1,822.63
2012 22,884,000.00 -0- 22,884,000.00 1,777,817,970 1.29% 1,712.23
2013 21,519,000.00 -0- 21,519,000.00 1,776,553,570 1.21% 1,594.59
2014 19,325,000.00 -0- 19,325,000.00 1,762,934,470 1.10% 1,427 .04
2015 17,675,000.00 -0- 17.675,000.00 1,769,461,520 1.00% 1,304.52
2016 16,110,000.00 -0- 16,110,000.00 1,811,683,320 0.89% 1,189.02
2017 14,525,000.00 -0- 14,525,000.00 1,818,955,520 0.80% b
Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.

** Not available at audit
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016

EXHIBIT "J-12"

UNAUDITED
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable * Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Berkeley Heights Township 20,695,361 100.00% $ 20,695,361
Other debt
Union County 582,124,790 5.03% 29,280,877
Subtotal, overlapping debt 49,976,238
Berkeley Heights School District Direct Debt 15,735,000 15,735,000
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 65,711,238

Sources: Township Chief Financial Officer and County Treasurer's Office

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Berkeley Heights. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-ter
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

a For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the

district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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Year Ended
December 31

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

EXHIBIT "J-14"

UNAUDITED
Per Capita
Unemployment Rate Income Population
2.2% $ 48,743 13,298
2.0% 50,683 13,269
2.6% 51,645 13,303
4.6% 49,897 13,436
4.7% 49,897 13,216
4.7% 52,297 13,266
4.7% 53,638 13,365
4.4% 54,382 13,495
3.7% 57,306 13,542
3.7% 60,089 13,549
3.5% > 13541

Source: N.J. Department of Labor

** Not available at audit
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2017

UNAUDITED
LIMITS
PROPERTY
Blanket Building and Contents 3 108,730,383
Boiler & Machinery
Flood - Outside 100 Year Flood Zone 1,000,000
Flood - Inside 100 Year Flood Zone
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
Environmental Impairment Liability (Group Aggregate) 1,000,000
Each Impairment Aggregate limit per Insured:
GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGES
Each Occurrence Limit 1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury Limit 1,000,000
General Aggregate Limit 2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations, Aggregate Limit 2,000,000
Fire Damage Limit 100,000
Medical Expense Limit 5,000
AUTOMOBILE
Liability 1,000,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Motorists 1,000,000
Comprehensive and Collision Deductibles
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY POLICY
School Board Legal Liability Limit 1,000,000
Employment Related Practices Limit 1,000,000
CRIME
Employee Dishonesty-per employee 100,000
Per Loss
Forgery & Alteration
STATUTORY BONDS
Public Official Bond -Bus Admn/Treasurer 300,000
UMBRELLA LIABILITY
Limit of Liability 10,000,000
EXCESS UMBRELLA (CAP PROGRAM)
Limit of Liability (shared among all Boards) 50,000,000
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EXHIBIT "J-20"
SHEET #1

DEDUCTIBLE

1,000

25,000

10,000

250/500

5,000
5,000
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TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY HEIGHTS SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE

Disability Insurance-Athletic
Student Accident Full Excess Plan
Volunteer Accident Full Excess Plan

Cyber Liability

Privacy Liability

Privacy Reulatory Claimes Coverage

Security Breech Response Coverage

Security Liability

Multimedia Liability

Cyber Extortion

Business Income and Digital Asset Restoration
PCI DSS Assessment

Workers Compensation

Self Insured Retention

Bi By Accident-Each Accident
Bl by Disease-Each Employee

JUNE 30, 2017
UNAUDITED
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1,000,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS EXHIBIT "K-1"

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07677

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of Township of Berkeley Heights School District (the "District") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District's financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 14, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District’s control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However we noted a immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported
to the Board of Education of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District in a separate
Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial and Compliance dated
November 14, 2017.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Jm&mam

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT

Kbt w AN

November 14, 2017 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

EXHIBIT "K-2"

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Berkeley Heights School District
County of Union

Berkeley Heights, New Jersey 07677

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Township of Berkeley Heights School District’'s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Township of Berkeley
Heights School District’'s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The District’s
major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Township of
Berkeley Heights School District’'s major state programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Township of Berkeley Heights School District's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Township of Berkeley Heights School District’'s compliance.
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SuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the Township of Berkeley Heights School District complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with New
Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Township of Berkeley Heights School District’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of State of New Jersey OMB 715-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for

any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS/

Bihio bl

November 14, 2017 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-5”
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2017

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financiai assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Berkeley Heights School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to
the Board’s basic financial statements. Ali federal and state awards received
directly from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state
financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the District’'s basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Uniform
Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The
District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the deferred state
aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP accounting purposes, those payments are not
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue
fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also
recognizes the related revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the deferred state aid payments in the current
budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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EXHIBIT *K-5"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($2,796.00) for the general fund. The net adjustment to reconcile from the
budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $6,170.26 for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of
the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis
as follows:
Federal State Total
General Fund $7,366,077.31 $7,366,077.31
Special Revenue Fund $691,152.73 1,317.25 692,469.98
Capital Projects Fund 288,242.00 288,242.00
Debt Service Fund 592,831.00 592,831.00
Total Awards &
Financial Assistance $691,152.73 $8,248,467.56 $8,939,620.29
NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS
Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.
NOTE 5: OTHER

The amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2017. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2017.
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Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section | — Summary of Auditor’'s Results

Financial Statements

(1)
(2)

)

Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted during the audit?

Federal Program(s) — Not Applicable

State Program(s)

(1)

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor’s Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087
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Unmeodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No



Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Resulits (Continued)

State Program(s) (Continued)

(4) Identification of Major State Program(s):
Grant
Program Number
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contributions 16-495-034-5095-003
School Development Authority Grants 0310-XX-XXXX

(5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

EXHIBIT “K-6"

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular 15-087? Yes

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

Internal Control Findings — None Reported

Compliance Findings — None Reported

Section lll — Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and_ State

Programs
Federal Programs — Not Applicable

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT “*K-7"
Township of Berkeley Heights School District
Union County, New Jersey

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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